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cavotec was listed on the nZX from January 2007, until delisting on 26 september 2011. the closing price for the share on that date was 
nZd 2.45. on 19 october 2011, cavotec sA successfully listed on the nAsdAQ oMX in stockholm. the trade price development of its share 
is shown in the chart above.

2012 2011 2010(2) 2009(2) 2008(2) 

number of shares issued 71,397,220 71,397,220 63,632,700 63,632,700 63,632,700

closing price seK 24.00 13.75 - - -

closing price(1) eur 2.80 1.54 1.95 1.29 1.22

Market cap(1) (million) eur 199.7 110.2 123.9 81.9 77.3

dividend(1) eur 0.041 0.017 0.023 0.015 -

eps(1) eur 0.173 0.089 0.125 0.082 0.145

(1) at end of the year prevailing exchange rate
(2) end of the year values on NZX

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  stock performance - nAsdAQ oMX
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Cavotec SA & Subsidiaries 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

EUR 000’s

InComE StAtEmEnt ItEmS

revenue from sales of goods  220,072  189,969  144,960  125,258  141,724 

Gross operating Result (EBItDA)  21,736  17,191  15,763  12,270  16,406 

operating Result (EBIt)  17,978  12,684  12,387  8,951  13,318 

Profit for the year  12,192  5,844  8,006  5,200  9,198 

total comprehensive income  13,018  7,018  11,005  6,521  6,641 

BAlAnCE ShEEt ItEmS

non-current assets  106,141  98,027  72,885  65,802  64,343 

of which goodwill  61,646  61,930  44,784  44,089  43,640 

current assets  94,271  78,762  62,538  57,849  59,080 

cash and cash equivalents  10,313  12,952  12,203  10,957  6,628 

total assets  210,725  189,741  147,626  134,609  130,051 

total equity  (106,829)  (94,873)  (76,807)  (66,917)  (60,396)

interest-bearing liabilities  (34,828)  (36,664)  (31,878)  (32,812)  (33,919)

non-interest-bearing liabilities  (69,067)  (58,205)  (38,941)  (34,880)  (35,736)

total equity and liabilities  (210,725)  (189,741)  (147,626)  (134,609)  (130,051)

CASh flow ItEmS

cash flow from operating activities  11,900  5,164  10,951  8,594  4,648 

cash flow from financial activities  (5,035)  2,712  2,568  6,551  4,130 

cash flow from investing activities  (12,183)  (6,707)  (8,545)  (3,295)  (11,870)

Cash flow for the year  (5,318)  1,169  4,974  11,850  (3,091)

PRofItABIlIty AnD PRofItABIlIty-RElAtED kEy fIGURES

order intake 224,984 215,876  144,181  143,694  146,782 

gross operating margin 9.9% 9.0% 10.9% 9.8% 11.6%

operating margin 8.2% 6.7% 8.5% 7.1% 9.4%

interest coverage 14.2x 8.1x 7.0x 4.7x 8.7x

return on average capital employed (roAce) 8.3% 4.6% 7.3% 6.1% 11.7%

return on equity (roe) 12.0% 6.9% 11.0% 8.2% 16.2%

CAPItAl StRUCtURE AnD CAPItAl StRUCtURE-RElAtED kEy fIGURES

net debt  (24,511)  (23,708)  (19,651)  (21,850)  (27,264)

net debt/equity ratio 22.9% 25.0% 25.6% 32.7% 45.1%

equity/assets ratio 50.7% 50.0% 52.0% 49.7% 46.4%

leverage ratio 1.1x 1.4x 1.2x 1.8x 1.7x

  financial information in summary  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 
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ChAllEnGES AnD AChIEVEmEntS 
in the past year our challenges came primarily in the form of some 
of our customers lowering volumes and delaying purchasing due to 
uncertainty in the global economy and financial markets.

We also engaged in an on-going legal dispute in the us, with our ex-
partner and former owner of inet. however, with a strong local cavotec 
team in place, we are maintaining and building customer confidence 
in the us, as shown by several major Airports project wins announced 
in recent weeks.

it has been encouraging to see the continued success of our niche 
and innovative technologies that have driven substantial increases in 
revenues across the group.

We have also achieved significant reductions in operational costs, 
relative to the increase in our revenues, further boosting margins to 
reach significant ebit growth in the first 12 months after our listing on 
the nAsdAQ oMX.

Another positive development is our growing profile within the financial 
community. this has helped drive a 70% increase in the cavotec share 
price over 2012. With this increase, our capitalisation now better reflects 
our performance, and is more in line with our peers on the oMX. 

hEADInG foR fURthER GRowth
to improve our service offering, we have invested substantially in 
our organisation in recent years. following strong growth in 2011, 
we continued to invest in our employees and service and support 
structure, ensuring a continued high level of service to our customers.

looking ahead, and with our published financial targets in mind, we 
will look to maintain significant growth momentum, further improve our 
operating margins and expand our offering.

We see 2013 as a year of consolidation for cavotec. our strength as 
an organisation will, however, enable us to improve our position and 
overall performance going forward.

InVEStInG In CAVotEC
introducing innovative technologies and improving industry standards 
takes time. i believe that we will continue to reap the benefits of 
investing the time and effort to do this, as we already have for many 
years in segments where we are now recognised as market leaders.

nearly 10 years ago our board asked cavotec management to 
start looking for products and systems close to our core business 
with the potential to significantly increase average unit price. these 
efforts have delivered some of our most successful systems such 
as MoorMaster™, AMp, pcAir, and fully integrated system sales for 
airports. We are now seeing substantial returns on these investments, 
and we will continue to do so for many years to come. furthermore, we 
will continue to bring new, industry-changing technologies to market.

today, cavotec is active in more sectors and involved in more projects 
than ever before. Many of these projects are in emerging markets, 
where we continue to concentrate our efforts and resources.

As an investment, cavotec should be considered as a solid, long-term 
prospect, providing steady value creation through strong growth while 
improving profitability. i hope that you feel equally comfortable with 
cavotec, its future and its management. 
    
    

 lugano, March 2013
  
          

 Stefan widegren
 Chairman  
 

the chAirMAn’s 
perspective

2012 was a challenging, but also an excellent year for Cavotec. Indeed, in terms of financial performance, it was our best year 
ever. Our CEO, our Board and management, and I are delighted that we achieved our targets for the year, and thereby met, and 
possibly exceeded the expectations of our shareholders and the wider market.
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kEy fIGURES
cavotec ended the year with an order book worth around eur 100 
million. the group is also meeting its published financial targets of 
maintaining annual revenue growth of at least 10 per cent, and in time 
reach an ebit margin of 12 per cent in the business cycle.

Accumulated revenues reached just over eur 220 million, a significant 
15.8% increase compared to fy11.
 
our adjusted operating profit amounted to eur 21.5 million, after 
deducting 3.5 million of special items related to the on-going litigation 
with Mike colaco and restructuring operations in germany.
 
profit before tax amounted to eur 16.2 million, while net profit was 
eur 12.2 million.

DIVERSE APPlICAtIonS, GEoGRAPhICAl SPREAD
one of cavotec’s many strengths is the wide variety of sectors and 
applications, all over the world, which use its systems. from connecting 
aircraft to air, fuel, water and electrical power at airports in the far east, 
to radio remote control (rrc) units used to operate machinery off the 
coast of norway, cavotec technologies are enabling our customers to 
operate more efficiently, more safely and more sustainably.

the diversity of the group’s applications, and wide geographical 
presence helps cavotec mitigate risk across markets and sectors. for 
example, less than 20 per cent of group revenues are exposed to 
currently weaker european end-user markets, while more than 50 per 
cent is derived from emerging markets.

InnoVAtIVE tEChnoloGIES
irrespective of sector or market, our customers are looking for ways to 
reduce operating costs and meet environmental targets. this frequently 
entails the automation and the electrification of equipment. in 2012, 
we continued to develop our innovative technologies in these areas to 
satisfy growing demand for such systems.

cavotec is increasingly recognised as an advanced technology 

innovator. the group’s automated mooring technology, MoorMaster™, 
Alternative Maritime power (AMp) shore-to-ship power supply systems, 
and our electrified rtgs (rubber-tyred gantry cranes) all continued to 
make progress throughout the year, with a steady flow or orders for 
all three systems. 

similarly, our innovations and service offering for Airports – further 
strengthened through acquisitions (see below) – had a strong 2012, 
with several large orders signed for systems that will serve leading 
airports and carriers in the us and elsewhere. 

cavotec’s Airports unit continued its development as one of the global 
airport sector’s leading ground system equipment (gse) integrators. in 
the fourth quarter, the unit also concluded the official handover of its 
fully integrated eur 32-million integrated gse project in bahrain. this 
is the largest single project ever handled by the group.

oPERAtIonS
the group made several important operational improvements to its 
structure during the year. these strategic decisions – acquisitions and 
streamlining of production among them – will ensure further progress 
on cavotec’s day-to-day profitability now and in the future. 

in 2012, the group oversaw the successful integration of us-based 
airport systems manufacturer inet. this is of particular note because 
the inet product range complements cavotec’s, and allows the group 
to offer comprehensive and integrated solutions for airports.

the Airports unit received a substantial boost in september with the 
acquisition of ground support equipment manufacturer combibox. this 
provided cavotec with access to a large number of new markets in the 
far east and europe, where combibox has strong market penetration.

the group also implemented an up-stream organisation of cavotec 
germany, with the closing of one production site and the opening of 
a new facility – at dietzenbach outside frankfurt – that will enable the 
group to expand production capacity in the years ahead.

Cavotec continued to grow strongly in 2012, despite challenging global economic conditions. Our commitment to listening to 
customers, developing innovative technologies, establishing global operations with a local presence, and being present in a wide 
variety of sectors continues to drive success for the Group. These efforts saw 2012 become a record year for Cavotec.

the ceo’s 
report
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While doubt seems set to persist over the strength of economic 
recovery in europe in the short-term, it should be noted that cavotec 
has a relatively low end-customer exposure here. 

furthermore, despite sluggish macroeconomic growth in recent years 
in europe and elsewhere, the group has consistently demonstrated its 
ability to compete successfully and to meet its revenue and earnings 
targets. 

the year was a strong one for the group’s ports & Maritime Market 
unit (Mu), with the unit’s share of total group revenues increasing to 
37 per cent. 

the group also extended its credit facility by eur 15 million, and 
bond capacity to eur 50 million. these measures will ensure cavotec 
continues to handle projects of greater scope and recruit and retain the 
high-calibre staff needed to ensure its continued development.

lookInG AhEAD
Although the short-term global economic outlook seems uncertain, 
cavotec is in a strong position, with an order book of more than eur 
110 million at January 2013. With the tenets of our success to date 
also firmly in place – broad product range and extensive geographic 
presence – i believe cavotec is ready to grow in 2013 and beyond.

growth is likely to come primarily from the ports & Maritime and 
Airports market units, with the offshore segment being a significant 
source of growth.

We expect the Airports Mu to continue to grow strongly, in part due to 
the unit now supplying fully integrated solutions – a valuable addition 
to its offering – and as a result of the additional markets now available 
to cavotec through the combibox acquisition.

We believe the ports & Maritime unit is also poised for a new stage 
of growth. As interest in automation technologies continues to build, 
we expect further success for MoorMaster™ and rrc technologies, 
amongst others.

furthermore, cavotec is in a position to support a wide variety of 
industries to comply with increased legislative requirements on safety 
and the environment. one area where we see significant potential is 
in the ports sector, where we supply emission-reducing technologies 
such as e-rtgs and AMp systems. We continue to see strong interest 
in these systems across europe and north America, and we are now 
seeing growing demand for AMp in Asia – a huge opportunity for 
cavotec.

our Mining & tunnelling unit most likely has a tougher year ahead, at 
least in the hard rock mining segment. however, tunnelling and related 
major infrastructure projects appear set for continued growth.

general industry is likely to remain stable for the most part, with 
a decrease in activity for cranes and robotics sectors offset by 
significantly increased activity in land rigs and defence.

We continue to recruit new talent in a large number of countries, 
reinforcing our presence and knowledge base in markets all around 
the world. cavotec brazil, the group’s newest company, will become 
fully operational in 2013, and will provide cavotec with a presence in 
a market that we believe has substantial potential.

We will also continue our investment in north America, which is now 
one of our three largest markets by revenue; the other two being the 
far east and the Middle east, where we also anticipate further growth.

We remain fully committed to the financial targets established at the 
time of our listing on the nAsdAQ oMX. the initiatives to improve 
our margins have seen considerable progress, despite pressure from 
several exceptional items, which we do not expect to see repeated in 
2013.

We will maintain our strong emphasis on cost savings and productivity 
improvements at our centres of excellence and other production 
facilities, while safeguarding our ability to deliver the outstanding 
performance expected by our customers. We will continue to explore 
opportunities to develop our service revenues, secure synergies from 
recent acquisitions, and deliver higher return on investment.

in conclusion, cavotec is well placed – both financially and 
technologically – to succeed in the face of current global macro 
economic conditions. supported by the group’s strong innovative 
edge, worldwide operations and local presence, cavotec is set to meet 
its stated financial targets and continue to succeed in 2013, and in 
the years ahead.

   

  
          

 ottonel Popesco
 Chief Executive Officer  
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More thAn 30 yeArs 
of friendship 
And cooperAtion

Starting in Sweden in 
1974, Cavotec was a 
fledgling organisation, 
as yet unproven on the 
global marketplace. 
Steadily, the company 
began to grow and 
develop its international 
character, so evident 
in the Group today. By 
always looking ahead 
and readily accepting 
the challenges 
faced by all dynamic 
organisations, Cavotec 
has become truly “local 
everywhere”.

1974
incorporation of specimas Ab in sweden

1976
specimas Ab renamed cavotec Ab

1984
incorporation of cavotec sales company 
in finland

Acquisition of specimas spA in italy

1986
incorporation of cavotec sales company in 
the united Kingdom

1988
incorporation of cavotec sales companies 
in canada, italy and norway

1989
incorporation of cavotec group holdings 
nv in the netherlands

1990
incorporation of cavotec sales 
company in the netherlands

Acquisition of ctA srl in italy

incorporation of et power connectors 
Ab in sweden

1991
incorporation of cavotec  
sales companies in Australia, france 
and the us

1993
incorporation of cavotec  
sales companies in germany and the 
uAe

1995
incorporation of cavotec  
sales companies in hong Kong and 
shanghai

1996
incorporation of cavotec 
sales company in Argentina

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  cavotec’s timeline
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1997
Acquisition of Alfo Apparatebau gmbh 
in germany

incorporation of cavotec  
sales company in singapore

2004
Acquisition of fladung gmbh in 
germany

cavotec group and Mooring 
systems ltd. sign sales agreement

Acquisition of Micro-control As  
in norway

cavotec marks 30-year anniversary

2005
incorporation of cavotec sales 
company in india

1999
Acquistion of Metool pty ltd. in 
Australia

Acquisition of rMs enrouleurs sA in 
france

incorporation of cavotec sales 
company in denmark

2002
Acquisition of gantrex group in 
canada, south Africa and the us

2007
listing of cavotec Msl on the new 
Zealand stock exchange

group corporate office is established 
in switzerland

reverse acquisition with Msl

incorporation of cavotec sales 
company in russia

2008
Acquisition of the dabico group in the 
us and uK

Acquisition of Meyerinck gmbh in 
germany

divestment of gantrex operations

2009
Milestone order received for pcAir at 
bahrain international Airport

february 2011
Announcement of scheme of 
Arrangement and listing of a swiss 
holding company on nAsdAQ oMX

march 2011
incorporation of cavotes sales 
company in spain

may 2011
incorporation of cavotec sales 
company in brazil

August 2011
Acquisition of inet group in the us

october 2011
cavotec sA listed on nAsdAQ oMX 
stockholm

September 2012
Acquisition of combibox in sweden

october 2012
1st Anniversary of the listing on 
nAsdAQ oMX

  cavotec’s timeline  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 
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our diverse MArKet units

Revenues by market Units
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ports & Maritime

Airports

Mining & tunnelling

General Industry

total

Ports & maritime Airports mining & tunnelling General Industry

36.9%

20.3%

16.6%

26.2%
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EUR 000’s 2012 2011

ports & Maritime 81,220 62,441 

Airports 57,692 49,988 

Mining & tunnelling 36,518 30,346 

general industry 44,642 47,194 

total 220,072 189,969 

EUR 000’s 2012 2011

Americas  37,316  25,516 

europe & Africa  101,197  81,112 

Middle east & india  24,205  34,289 

far east  29,192  26,172 

Australasia & se Asia  28,162  22,879 

total  220,072  189,969 

Revenues by market Units

Revenues by Regions

  our diverse Market units  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 
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PoRtS & mARItImE

SomE of oUR mAjoR CUStomERS In thIS mARkEt UnIt:

ABB • Aker • APMT • Cargotec • China Harbour Engineering • Dalian Huarai • DP World • Eurogate • Konecranes • MSC 
National Oilwell Varco • Odim • Port of Los Angeles • Port of Long Beach • Port of Salalah • PSA • SLSMC • Statoil • ZPMC

“We have a strong focus on the environment, and MoorMaster™ will make our 
operations more sustainable by improving air quality in and around the port — this 
is very important to us. We also anticipate making significant savings on fuel.”

Cees de waal, Director of Dutch passenger ferry company tESo.
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hIGhlIGhtS
the year was extremely positive for cavotec’s 
MoorMaster™ automated mooring systems. 
the unit registered a number of major 
projects for the technology, including one 
for a sophisticated ship-to-ship application in 
north America that highlights the adaptability 
of the technology, and suggests further growth 
potential for this unique innovation.

the ports & Maritime unit booked an order for 
three specially lock-adapted MoorMaster™ 
MM400lc units for installation at the st. 
lawrence seaway that links the Atlantic 
ocean and the great lakes in canada.

in december, the group announced news of 
a MoorMaster™ project at a passenger ferry 
application in the netherlands. once installed, 
MoorMaster™ will hold ferries in place safely 
and securely during loading operations, 
reducing the amount of time ships will need 
to use their engines at the berth. this will 
enable the port to make substantial reductions 
in emissions, thus improving air quality in and 
around the port, and cut fuel costs.

the unit won a second substantial order 
for MoorMaster™ at an application in the 
Mediterranean, the first being in 2011. 
cavotec is supplying 18 MoorMaster™ 
MM200c units for installation at an exposed 
container handling berth. the demanding 
characteristics of the berth mean that 
MoorMaster™ will result in considerable 
safety and productivity improvements over 
conventional mooring. 

the year saw impressive results for cavotec’s 
AMp systems. these systems enable ships 
in port to switch off their engines and 
connect to land-based electricity supply. it 
offers substantial environmental benefits and 
reduced fuel costs.

throughout the year, cavotec announced 
AMp projects at three of the largest ports in 
the us – the port of long beach, the port of 
los Angeles and the port of oakland.

As the national and international regulatory 
framework pertaining to the environment 
continues to expand, cavotec is able to work 
with port authorities, shipping lines and others 
to meet their sustainability targets.

the equipment supplied under these contracts 
includes shore power systems built into the 
quayside incorporating cavotec’s innovative 
spring-assisted one-hand-lift Access covers. 
these units allow safe and quick connection 
of ships to shore-side electrical supply.

the group’s shore power systems are 
increasingly widely used at ports in north 
America, europe and the far east. indeed, 
cavotec secured several orders for AMp 
systems in china and taiwan throughout 
the year. one of these projects was for bulk 
handling applications, something of a first for 
the industry. 

A third area of particular success for ports & 
Maritime in 2012 was electrical power supply 
and spreader cable reels for container cranes. 
the unit received several orders for large 
numbers of crane cable systems from major 
oeMs, primarily ZpMc, one of the world’s 
largest industrial conglomerates. cavotec also 
has long-term relationships with oeMs such 
as hyundai, Mitsui, hyundai samho and tcM.

orders this year included systems for ship-to-
shore (sts) and rail-Mounted gantry (rMg) 
cranes destined for ports in Australia, brazil, 
the netherlands, Malaysia, singapore, sri 
lanka, the uAe and the uK.

Cavotec’s Ports & Maritime unit is a key supplier of innovative technologies to the global ports and 
shipping sectors. The unit develops systems that enable ports and shipping lines to minimise risk, 
improve operational efficiency and reduce environmental impact. 

With the global ports sector showing signs of tentative growth overall, Cavotec’s Ports & Maritime 
unit performed strongly in 2012. Impressive results were registered for all of the unit’s main 
product areas, including its Alternative Maritime Power (AMP) shore-to-ship power systems, and 
MoorMaster™ automated mooring for ships. Demand was also strong for power supply and spreader 
cable reel systems for container cranes.

Ports & Maritime had a strong 2012, 
with revenues up 30.1 per cent on 
the year to EUR 81,220 thousands. 
The unit’s Order Book stood at EUR 
53,652 thousands at the end of 
December 2012, an increase of 31.2 
per cent on the previous year.

Key 
figures

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 81,220 thousands

37%

42%

54%

Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 94,376 thousands

Order Book
EUR 53,652 thousands

FY11 Revenues
EUR 62,441 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 81,220 thousands

+30.1%
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hoW cAvotec MAKes the 
World’s ports And ships 
sAfer And cleAner

mARInE PRoPUlSIon 
SlIP RInGS
in close partnership with 
Abb, cavotec has developed 
advanced marine propulsion 
slip rings that help power ships 
efficiently and cleanly.

moormaster™ 
MoorMaster™ is an 
automated mooring technology 
that moors and releases ships 
in seconds.

E-RtGs
cleaner, faster, quieter:  
cavotec e-rtgs help ports 
all around the world make 
environmental and productivity 
gains.

CUStomISED EnGInEERInG
Working closely with customers 
over the long-term, we develop 
innovative solutions tailored to the 
specific challenges they face.

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  ports & Maritime Market unit

The following 
descriptions provide 
a brief overview of 
selected Ports & 
Maritime systems. For 
full details of all our 
technologies, visit: 
www.cavotec.com
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PAnzERBElt
cavotec’s panzerbelt cable 
protection system ensures the 
safe transmission of electrical 
power to quay cranes at more 
than 800 applications globally. 

motoRISED CABlE REElS
cavotec’s motorised cable reels 
ensure safe and efficient cargo 
handling at ports worldwide.

AmP
AMp systems enable ships in 
ports to switch off their engines 
and connect to shore side 
electricity.

SlIP RInGS
the group’s slip ring systems 
supply data and electrical power 
in a diverse range of maritime 
and other industrial applications.

  ports & Maritime Market unit  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 
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AIRPoRtS
“Airlines, together with manufacturers and governments, must step up their 
investment in new technology. It has been the main driver of progress so far and it 
has the greatest potential for future progress.” 

Philippe Rochat, former Director Aviation Environment, International Air transport Association.

SomE of oUR mAjoR CUStomERS In thIS mARkEt UnIt:

Anchorage Airport •  Bahrain Airport • Boeing Corporation • Cargolux • ClaVal • Dubai Airport • Emte Sistemas • Frankfurt Airport
Gamuda • Gatwick International Airport • Heathrow International Airport • Lufthansa • Munich Airport • New Delhi Airport 
Oslo Airport • Shanghai Airport • Siemens • Saudi Oger
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hIGhlIGhtS
the year featured several highlights for 
the unit. progress in india was particularly 
significant where cavotec received two 
substantial orders for fuelling systems at 
Mumbai chatrapati shivaji international 
Airport and at delhi international Airport. 
the Mumbai project follows the successful 
installation of similar systems at the airport. 

remaining in india, at rajiv gandhi 
hyderabad international Airport, cavotec 
is expanding the airport’s cargo apron and 
modernising remote cargo aircraft stands 
with electrical converters, hatch pits supply 
cables. this is the first time that cavotec is 
supplying aircraft converter systems to the 
indian market. 

these projects demonstrate cavotec’s 
growing presence on a market that is set for 
rapid growth in the years ahead.

the unit also reported a strong performance 
in other emerging markets such as Africa, 
where cavotec won an order to supply 
fuelling systems for ghana’s Kotoka 
international Airport.

cavotec already has ground support 
equipment in operation in many parts of 
Africa, including Kenya, nairobi, senegal 
and south Africa.  

on the crucial us market, the unit won a 
major project for air and electrical power 
supply systems for wide-body aircraft at 
Washington dulles international Airport. 

the order shows the trust customers have 
in cavotec systems to service larger aircraft 
such as the boeing 787 and the Airbus 

A380. the group has previously supplied 
systems that serve the A380 at several 
airports in europe and the Middle east.

the year also saw the successful completion 
of the largest project ever undertaken by 
cavotec: a eur 32-million integrated ground 
support equipment solution for bahrain 
international Airport. A useful reference for 
the unit, that demonstrates to the market 
that cavotec has the capacity to successfully 
carry out orders of this scale.

in september, cavotec acquired swedish 
airport equipment manufacturer combibox. 
this was a significant strategic step to 
support the continued expansion of the 
Airports unit and the group as a whole. 

combibox brings to cavotec 30 years’ 
experience of the airports industry and an 
extensive customer base, much of which 
is located in markets where cavotec was 
not previously present in Asia, the baltics, 
scandinavia, eastern europe and india. 
combibox is extremely active here, and 
indeed was cavotec’s main competitor in 
these and other markets. 

combibox’s product range — in-ground 
systems that supply aircraft with air, fuel, 
electrical power, and fresh and blue water 
— complements cavotec’s offering. similar 
to cavotec, combibox has generated 
added value for customers by successfully 
introducing “cross-over” technologies from 
the Airports sector to maritime applications.  

Cavotec is a leading system integrator for the global airports sector. Working closely with airports, 
airlines and industry bodies, Cavotec’s Airports Market Unit enhances passenger experience at airports 
worldwide. Its systems allow airports to service aircraft quickly, efficiently and cost-effectively. 

As air travel continues to grow, so does Cavotec Airports, with revenues up 15.4 per cent on the year. 
The unit continued to work on large, long-term projects for new-build airports in the Middle East and 
the Far East, as well as improving existing infrastructure at airports in mature markets such as Europe 
and North America. Airports’ offering and customer base was substantially strengthened in 2012 with 
the Group’s acquisition of equipment manufacturer Combibox.

  Airports Market unit  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 

Airports performed well in 2012, with 
revenues up 15.4 per cent on the year 
to EUR 57,692 thousands. The unit’s 
Order Book stood at EUR 29,927 
thousands at the end of December 
2012, an increase of 30.2 per cent on 
the previous year. 

Key 
figures

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 57,692 thousands

26%

24%

30%

Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 54,874 thousands

Order Book
EUR 29,927 thousands

FY11 Revenues
EUR 49,989 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 57,692 thousands

+15.4%



20 Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  Airports Market unit

integrAted systeMs for 
More efficient Airports

PRE-ConDItIonED AIR 
SyStEmS
cavotec pre-conditioned Air 
(pcAir) systems supply cooled 
and heated air to aircraft and 
passenger bridges to ensure 
optimal ambient temperatures.

These are selected 
product highlights of 
Cavotec’s Airports Market 
Unit. For full details of all 
our technologies, visit: 
www.cavotec.com
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fUEllInG
the unit’s in-ground and 
pantograph fuelling systems 
transfer fuel to aircraft safely and 
efficiently at airports all around 
the world.

ConVERtERS
cavotec inet electrical converters 
enable aircrews to connect to 
electrical power at the gate, thus 
reducing Apu use. the result? 
reduced emissions and reduced 
fuel costs.

In-GRoUnD, tUnnEl SyStEmS
Air, fuel, power, waste, potable and 
blue water: all via pit and tunnel 
systems safely and efficiently under 
the tarmac.
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“With its commitment to just-in-time delivery, Cavotec enables us to streamline our 
supply chain management and maximise our operational efficiencies.” 

hans Rimmerfors, VP Purchasing, Atlas Copco Rock Drills.

mInInG & tUnnEllInG

SomE of oUR mAjoR CUStomERS In thIS mARkEt UnIt:

Atlas Copco • Bals • BHP Billiton • Blumenbecker Automation • Herrenknecht • LKAB • Pilbara Iron • Rambooms • Robbins
Sandvik • ThyssenKrupp • WHBO



23

hIGhlIGhtS
of particular note in 2012, was the unit’s 
expanding presence on the us market 
where the group continues to build 
strong relationships with oeMs such as 
thyssenKrupp, the robbins company and 
other suppliers of mining and construction 
machinery.

from thyssenKrupp, the unit won an order 
for the manufacture of specialised medium 
voltage cables, hose reels and related 
equipment for indoor stacker and reclaimer 
machines at an application in saudi Arabia.

for the robbins company, the unit manu-
factured hose reels for an application in 
singapore. the work is being carried out in 
the us, reinforcing the group’s manufacturing 
presence in this important market.

remaining in north America, the unit secured 
an order for large level wind cable reels and 
special cable for sandvik. the equipment 
was fitted to stacker reclaimer machines for 
use at a coal handling application in british 
columbia.

despite periodic dips in demand, the Aus-
tralian mining sector remained a strong per-
former for the unit’s products and services 
in 2012. 

the unit won orders for cable reels, radials, 
drums and hoses for stacker reclaimer 
machines at a ship loading application in 
Western Australia, and secured several 
orders for power supply equipment from 
leading oeMs such as sandvik and major 
operators such as bMA. the majority of 
these orders were for cable reel systems for 
installation on stacker reclaimer machines 
and hopper cars.

the Mu also continued its on-going work 
with various customers on the seK 17-billion 
stockholm city line in the swedish capital. 
this major infrastructure project involves 
the construction of a six kilometre-train line 
deep under the city. cavotec is supplying 
cable management systems, rrc units and 
electrical connectors to several contractors 
such as bilfinger berger, ncc, Zublin and 
peAb.

As indicated in previous reports, the bulk of 
demand for this Mu’s products and services 
is characterised by large numbers of small-
scale and frequent orders. the unit’s long-
established relationships with major mining 
groups, such as sandvik, vale, Atlas copco 
and many others, ensured its continued 
strong position in the market throughout 
the year. the unit received large numbers 
of orders for power connectors, cables and 
hoses, motorised cable reels, rrc units and 
spring driven cable reels from customers 
worldwide. 

Cavotec’s Mining & Tunnelling market unit supplies leading mining, tunnelling and construction groups 
with innovative systems that ensure the world’s most challenging working environments are safe, 
efficient and keep environmental impact to a minimum. 

While the mining sector in 2012 experienced uncertainty, Cavotec’s Mining & Tunnelling unit maintained 
steady growth throughout the year. The unit continued to develop its long-term relationships with 
OEMs and other customers – typical of the Group’s approach to ensure continued growth. The unit 
noted stronger demand in several markets in 2012, such as Australia, the Far East, North America and 
Scandinavia.

  Mining & tunnelling Market unit  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 

Despite an uncertain outlook in the 
mining sector, the Mining & Tunnelling 
sector reported strong growth in 2012, 
with revenues up 20.3 per cent on the 
year to EUR 36,518 thousands. The 
unit’s Order Book stood at EUR 7,062 
thousands at the end of December 
2012, a decrease of 0.8 per cent on 
the previous year.

Key 
figures

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 36,518 thousands

17%

16%

7%

Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 35,299 thousands

Order Book
EUR 7,062 thousands

FY11 Revenues
EUR 30,346 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 36,518 thousands

+20.3%
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the sMArtest engineering 
for the toughest 
environMents

motoRISED CABlE REElS
used by leading oeMs, cavotec 
cable reels ensure the safe and 
efficient transfer of electrical power 
to mining and tunnelling equipment 
worldwide.

PowER ConnECtoRS
A critical element to Mining & 
tunnelling, cavotec connectors 
guarantee the secure transfer of 
electrical current to machinery at 
applications the world over – and 
deep into the earth.

Here are selected 
examples of Cavotec 
Mining & Tunnelling 
systems. For full 
details of all our 
technologies, visit: 
www.cavotec.com
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CABlES
right at the very core of the 
cavotec group, the supply of cables 
and cable reels to a large number 
of long-standing customers remains 
one of this unit’s most important 
activities.

RADIo REmotE ContRolS 
(RRC)
cavotec´s explosion-proof rrcs 
enable the use of machinery 
in the world´s most demanding 
environments. 



26

“Working closely with Cavotec, we have optimised our control system for the mast 
and substructure raising / lowering cylinders and the jacking systems on our land 
rig. Cavotec supported NOV with their engineering expertise to meet the specific 
requirements of the application, and developed an innovative radio remote control 
system that enables personnel to operate the draw-works at a safe distance from  
the drilling rig.” 

Elie j. Chedade, General manager, national oilwell Varco.

GEnERAl InDUStRy

SomE of oUR mAjoR CUStomERS In thIS mARkEt UnIt:

ABB • Alimak • Arcelor – Mittal • Al Habtoor • Costain • Fisia Italimpianti • GE International • Konecranes • Liebherr • Linde • Manitowoc
Palfinger • Rocktec • Siemens • Terex • Vahle



27

hIGhlIGhtS
throughout the year, the unit secured 
positive results across the many sectors and 
broad customer base in which it operates. 
the nordics, north America, the Middle 
east and the far east were areas where 
performance was especially strong.

A particularly strong growth area in 2012 
was radio remote control (rrc) systems. 
cavotec has created a name for itself as an 
expert manufacturer of rrc units. the year 
saw a large number of orders registered for 
these systems, especially in Asia and the 
us. cavotec continues to expand its market 
share in this important, highly niche market, 
on which customers place considerable 
value.

the us energy sector proved especially 
strong for the unit’s rrc systems – an area 
that is expected to deliver further progress 
going forward.

the unit received several orders for its 
advanced explosion-proof rrc systems. for 
example, a fluid power service company in 
the us ordered cavotec rrc systems for 
a high explosive (eX Zone 1) application to 
operate crane winch systems on land-based 
oilrigs.

in the Middle east, the unit secured a repeat 
order from a saudi Arabia-based customer 
for rrc units that will be used to operate 
crane loading arms for an application in the 
oil and gas segment. 

long-standing cavotec customer Abb pur-
chased a number of rrc systems that will 
be used to operate a cable production 
application in sweden. Also in sweden, the 
unit won an rrc project for units for use with 
large water cannon at a chemical handling 
berth at petroport on the west coast of the 
country. 

in May, the unit launched a new lightweight 
rrc terminal – the Mc-3-5 – that has 
already attracted interest from several 
customers. the model extends cavotec’s 
offering into new segments such as forestry, 
where lighter units are used more widely.

elsewhere, cavotec won orders for a number 
of specially adapted motorised cable reels 
for a major offshore energy project in Qatar. 
in the second quarter, the Mu received an 
order for large floating suction units for a 
leading industrial fuelling customer. At 24 
inches these are the largest such systems 
ever produced by cavotec. 

the unit also manufactured two 12-inch 
floating suction units for the same customer 
for use at an application in Australia – 
another first for cavotec.

in an example of the extraordinarily varied 
applications that use the group’s products 
and services, the Mu won an order for a 
number of power and signal cables for giant 
digital screens for use at a new multi-purpose 
arena in the swedish capital stockholm.

Again in europe, the unit received an order 
for pneumatic and electrically heated twin 
loading arms that will transfer high viscosity 
liquids to tankers trucks. these systems are 
designed to ex-Zone 1 safety requirements. 

And in germany, a leading chemicals group 
has purchased a number of advanced loading 
arms for lpg barges. Amongst several fea-
tures, these systems incorporate mechanical 
counterweights and highly sensitive proxim-
ity sensors to ensure that they conform to 
stringent safety and environmental protection 
requirements in germany.
 

Cavotec’s General Industry market unit is the Group’s most product- and sector-diverse. It is a key 
supplier of niche technologies to customers all over the world. 

The unit’s broad offering and global presence shielded it from those markets that slowed in 2012. 
Furthermore, the unit grew sharply in several areas, especially where customers sought Cavotec’s 
advanced solutions for specialist applications.
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In a challenging economic environment, 
General Industry posted modest 
decrease in 2012, with revenues down 
5.4 per cent on the year to EUR 44,642 
thousands. The unit’s Order Book stood 
at EUR 8,504 thousands at the end of 
December 2012, a decrease of 1.5 per 
cent on the previous year.

Key 
figures

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 44,642 thousands

20%

18%

9%

Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 40,435 thousands

Order Book
EUR 8,504 thousands

FY11 Revenues
EUR 47,193 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 44,642 thousands

-5.4%
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productivity And 
sustAinAbility All over 
the World

SlIP RInG ColUmnS
cavotec slip ring systems ensure 
the safe and efficient flow of data 
and electrical power between fixed 
and mobile structures, such as wind 
turbines and ship propellers.

CABlE, PowER, DRAG ChAInS
cavotec chains are used in a huge 
variety of industrial and automation 
applications worldwide.

SPRInG DRIVEn REElS
from heavy industrial machinery 
to major sporting and cultural 
events – cavotec spring-driven reels 
automate and optimise functionality.

ConnECtoRS 
With a long-established track record 
serving oeM customers such as sandvik 
and Atlas copco, our connectors are a 
common site at industrial applications all 
over the world. 

Below are just a 
few of our General 
Industry systems. For 
full details of all our 
technologies, visit: 
www.cavotec.com



29  general industry Market unit  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 

loADInG ARmS
cavotec loading arms transfer 
hazardous chemicals and foodstuffs 
at applications all over the world. 

RADIo REmotE ContRolS (RRC) 
from niche offshore energy 
applications, to a huge variety of 
industrial sites, cavotec rrcs enable 
our customers to operate equipment 
around the clock and around the 
world. 
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cavotec’s innovative technologies ensure a wide variety of industries all over the 
world operate cleanly and efficiently. our systems enable customers to reduce 
environmental impact at ports and airports, in the mining and tunnelling sector, and 
at a huge variety of general industry applications.

Working closely with customers, industry bodies and government agencies, cavotec 
develops innovative power control and distribution systems that allow customers to 
achieve their environmental targets. We also play a vital role in supporting industries 
in their efforts to meet increasingly stringent legislation regarding emissions, re-use 
of resources and energy consumption. 

for example, our Alternative Maritime power (AMp) shore-to-ship power systems, 
which allow ships in port to connect to land-based electricity supply, are helping 
ports and shipping lines reduce emissions across europe, north America and Asia. 
the emissions comparison below shows how grid-produced electricity produces 
substantially fewer pollutants than ships running their engines. 

this is an area that cavotec sees expanding significantly in the years ahead: in 
2007 the european union agreed to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 30 per 
cent by 2020 (1). And in 2008, the international Maritime organization announced 
a reduction in permitted sox emissions from ships with effect from January 1, 
2012. the global sulphur cap was initially lowered to 3.50 per cent (from 4.50 per 
cent) and will be cut again to 0.50 per cent from January 1, 2020 (2).

cavotec also helps ports reduce their environmental impact with the electrification 
of quay and yard cranes that were previously diesel-driven. furthermore, our 
automated mooring technology, MoorMaster™, holds vessels in place more 
effectively than conventional mooring lines, resulting in ships no longer having to re-
position along the berth, thus cutting ship emissions. MoorMaster™ also reduces 
reliance on tugs, thus further lowering emissions. these benefits, alongside those 
of increased safety and efficiency, are growing as the use of automated mooring 
steadily expands, (see opposite page).  

At airports, cavotec has pioneered pre-conditioned air (pcAir) systems that enable 
pilots to switch off aircraft auxiliary power units (Apus) when at the gate. Apus 
use between 200 and 600 litres of fuel per hour, so shutting them off produces 
considerable falls in emission levels and substantial savings in fuel costs. 

cavotec manufactures a range of advanced ground support equipment – including fuel, 
water and power supply units, tunnel systems, aircraft connectors and caddies – that 
reduce tarmac congestion, improve efficiency and reduce aircraft fuel consumption.

According to the international Air transport Association, airlines are aiming for at 
least an additional 25 per cent improvement in fuel efficiency and co2 emissions 
by 2020, through technological and operational enhancements. (3)

cavotec makes segments such as mining and tunnelling, the offshore energy 
sector and industrial production efficient and sustainable with automated systems 
and electrically powered technologies that help operators reduce their use of 
diesel-driven machinery.

cavotec cable reels, radio remote controls, slip ring columns, power connectors, 
cables and cable chains ensure precious metals and minerals are extracted and 
transported as efficiently as possible. 

We will continue to work closely with customers, and the wider community, to 
ensure that our world functions cleanly, safely and efficiently. We will continue to 
deliver the expertise and innovative systems that drive these initiatives forward to 
ensure a cleaner, better future for all.

(1) Official Journal of the European Union, DIRECTIVE 2005/33/EC OF THE EUROPEAN 
PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL, L 191/65

 http://www.westpandi.com/Documents/News/EUSulphurDirective.pdf
(2) IMO Briefing 36/2010, July 1, 2010: Air pollution from ships cut, with entry into force 

of MARPOL amendments. 
http://www.imo.org/MediaCentre/PressBriefings/Pages/MARPOL-Annex-VI-EIF.aspx

(3) IATA website: http://www.iata.org/whatwedo/environment/Pages/index.aspx

Source: Entec UK Ltd.
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8%

92%

22%

78%

sMArter , cleAner 
technologies

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  smarter, cleaner technologies
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mooRmAStER™ AUtomAtED mooRInG ContInUES to GAIn ExCEPtAnCE 
MoorMaster™ is a vacuum-based automated mooring technology that eliminates the need for conventional mooring lines. use of the system reduces ship and tug 
emissions. As ports and shipping lines see the environmental benefits of the technology, it is becoming increasingly widely used. the top graph shows the gradual increase 
in the number of MoorMaster™ installations. the bottom graph shows the number of mooring operations (annual and cumulative totals).

smarter, cleaner technologies  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 
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cAvotec’s centres 
of eXcellence
We have always worked in partnership with our customers: delivering 
solutions that meet their specific requirements. Our ability to consistently 
drive fresh thinking and develop innovative systems is typified by our nine 
Centres of Excellence, in Italy, Germany, New Zealand, Norway, Sweden, 
the UK and the US.

All design and manufacture of Cavotec systems takes place at these 
centres, where our engineers challenge and improve existing practice, 
daring to explore the potential advanced technologies have to offer. 

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  cavotec’s centres of excellence

CAVotEC Alfo
location: overath, germany
established: 1991
size: 7,000 sqm

cavotec Alfo specialises in the design 
and manufacturing of spring reels 
and slip ring columns, used in many 
different industry sectors. 

CAVotEC mEyERInCk
location: fernwald, germany
established: 1968
size: 3,000 sqm

cavotec Meyerinck, based in germany, 
supplies a wide range of fuelling 
systems, fluid and surge control, and 
loading terminal products for the 
aviation sector, and the petrochemical 
and food and beverage industries.
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CAVotEC ConnECtoRS
location: staffanstorp, sweden
established: 1991
size: 2,000 sqm

cavotec connectors’ sophisticated 
power supply systems are used in a wide 
variety of applications including material 
handling, mining and tunnelling, transport, 
automation and industrial production. 

CAVotEC flADUnG
location: dietzenbach, germany
established: 1968
size: 7,700 sqm

cavotec fladung has been a 
pioneer of airport ground support 
equipment specialising in in-ground 
utility systems – including cavotec’s 
pre-conditioned air system – mobile 
caddies, aircraft cables, connectors 
and tow bars and cable coilers. 

CAVotEC DABICo
location: costa Mesa, cA, usA
established: 1966
size: 4,500 sqm

cavotec dabico´s advanced in-ground 
fuelling systems are used at airports 
and other installations all over the 
world.

CAVotEC InEt
location: fullerton, cA, usA
established: 1967
size: 5,000 sqm

cavotec inet manufactures power 
conversion 50/60hz to 400hz systems, 
static transfer switches, uninterruptible 
power systems (ups), specialised group 
power units (gpu) and pre-conditioned 
Air systems. inet is also the beneficiary 
of several certifications as preferred 
contractor for federal and various local 
governments in the usA.

CAVotEC mICRo-ContRol
location: hell, norway
established: 1985
size: 3,000 sqm

cavotec Micro-control supplies a 
comprehensive range of industrial 
rrc for a vast range of applications 
in the offshore, mining, and maritime 
sectors, as well as general and 
process industries around the world. 

CAVotEC mooRmAStER 
location: christchurch, new Zealand
established: 1999
size: 500 sqm

based in christchurch, new Zealand, 
the cavotec MoorMaster technical 
team consists of experienced 
maritime personnel, naval architects 
and mechanical and electrical 
engineers who design and develop 
cavotec’s vacuum-based, automated 
mooring system, MoorMaster™.

CAVotEC SPECImAS 
location: nova Milanese, italy
established: 1963
size: 10,000 sqm

cavotec specimas engineers design 
and manufacture AMp systems, 
motorised cable reels, patented 
panzerbelt cable protection system, 
power cables and electric marine 
propulsion slip rings.
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huMAn 
resources
cavotec’s ambition is to offer challenging and rewarding careers in a 
fast-moving and diversified business. We hire exceptional, motivated 
individuals and invest in their future, building a culture of continuous 
learning through education and training.

Management continually seeks to develop employees’ integrity, and 
create an environment where our people are proud to do business 
around the world on our behalf with transparency and professionalism. 
We actively seek to assure employees’ health and well-being by 
creating an inspirational work environment and encouraging a healthy 
balance between work and private life.

cavotec is flexible and dynamic, yet never abandons responsibilities 
and commitments. our open working environment fosters the free 
exchange of ideas and mutual respect. 

following the restructuring of cavotec’s corporate communications 
and finance departments in 2012, priority was given to further develop 
and structure our hr and Marketing departments. one way the group 
has invested in hr is through structured projects that provide greater 
clarity to the board and top management about the workforce’s 
need for training programmes and competence development plans. 
our initiative to map key positions both in business and support 
functions has substantially improved the visibility of opportunities in the 
organisation, and our ability to match career paths with the aspirations 
of employees in line with the operational needs and expectations of 
the group.

the continued development of the support function at corporate 
level is an important leverage point providing increased scope and 
visibility to our local companies through the implementation of support 
tools and structured processes, especially in areas such as corporate 
communications and marketing.

number of employees (end of period)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

total 568 718 677 719 890 866*

*Headcount: internal payroll not full time equivalent.
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Employees by Category (2012)

5%
top Managers

22%
Managers

41%
office employees

32%
production employees

Employees by job family (2012) 

1%
project Management

4%
Service operations

21%
Sales, Marketing & 

communication

2%
R&d

3%
Administration & General Services

14%
engineering

8%
Finance

4%
General Management

1%
human Resources

29%
Industrial operations & 
Manufacturing

9%
purchasing, logistics, 

Warehousing, processing

1%
It

3%
Quality control

Employees by Geographical Region (2012) 

1%
Africa

7%
Australia Asia

6%
Middle east & India

9%
Far east

20%
northern europe

14%
Americas

17%
Southern europe

26%
central europe



CAVotEC’S DEmoGRAPhICS
the composition of the cavotec team reflects the group’s international, 
multicultural and interdisciplinary character. At the end of 2012, 
cavotec employed 866 people. More than 97% of our staff is 
permanently employed. they come from more than 40 countries on 
five continents, and from a wide variety of backgrounds. the majority 
are employed locally, with around 15% being skilled engineers. Almost 
30% of our employees have a university-level degree or higher. 

Although there are still only a small number of women in executive 
roles within cavotec, around 19% of its workforce is made up of 

women in support role positions. cavotec has a clearly stated policy 
that underlines its approach to hiring the best possible talent and 
embracing diversity. over the past two years the group has grown 
approximately 30% to meet the growing needs of the business and 
market in general.

the cavotec workforce has a low average age, with more than 35% of 
employees under 40. Where possible, the group seeks to ensure that 
younger members of staff benefit from more experienced employees’ 
knowledge of the industry and history of the cavotec group. 
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mUtUAl RESPECt In An IntERnAtIonAl tEAm
As a relatively small organisation, with a global presence, it is important 
that cavotec has a strong, shared company culture. this helps to align 
business goals, and creates a common vision for employees wherever 
they are based. each cavotec employee brings to the group a diverse 
range of skill sets and individual characteristics that are valued and 
recognised by fellow colleagues, partners and customers. All employees 
are respected and encouraged to contribute to the group’s success.

loCAl PRESEnCE
generally, staff is employed locally enabling cavotec to build long-term 
relationships with customers, suppliers, authorities and professional 
bodies. the group is committed to being close to its customers, all 
over the world, and to live up to our goal of being “local everywhere”.

our strength locally enables cavotec to work closely with its customers, 
gain a better understanding of their requirements and solve challenges 
they face more effectively. for partners and suppliers, the local 
presence and familiarity with local markets make cavotec a valuable 
and intrinsically competent business partner. Knowledge of local 
realities on global issues makes the group relevant for formulating 
regulatory norms and technical standards.

As a multinational group, it is of the utmost importance that cavotec 
staff conducts their work with sensitivity and exemplary ethical 
behaviour at all times. All our employees are issued with the group 
code of conduct that provides detailed guidelines on ethical standards 
and cultural differences.
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name Position year of birth member since(1) nationality Residence

fabio cannavale Member 1965 2010 italian switzerland

leena essén Member 1952 2010 swedish sweden

nicola gerber Member 1977 2010 german new Zealand

christer granskog Member 1947 2008 finnish finland

lakshmi Khanna Member 1941 2007 italian italy

erik lautmann Member 1950 2007 swedish sweden

Joe pope Member 1941 2003 new Zealand new Zealand

ottonel popesco Member and ceo 1957 2007 french switzerland

stefan Widegren chairman 1950 2007 swedish switzerland

(1) Please note that the year refers to membership in the Board of Directors of Cavotec MSL 

boArd 
of directors
The Cavotec Board consists of nine members. All Board members have extensive experience in global business and between 
them represent a broad variety of skill sets and backgrounds. We believe that strong leadership takes empathy, insight and 
a willingness to listen. All these characteristics personify our Board and Corporate Management’s approach to ensuring the 
Cavotec Group continues to flourish.

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  board of directors

* Not shown in photograph: Nicola Gerber
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fABIo CAnnAVAlE
Member of the board. fabio holds a Msc in engineering from politechnic university and an MbA from inseAd. he has served
as a strategy consultant at McKinsey & co and At Kearney. he is executive chairman of bravofly group and member of the 
board of directors of nomina sA, consortium real estate bv.

in the past five years, fabio cannavale has been, but is no longer a board member of roam, pies and Mont spA.

fabio cannavale holds 6,948,046 shares in cavotec (through nomina sA, in which fabio, together with related parties, hold
100 per cent of the shares).

lEEnA ESSén
Member of the board. leena holds a bsc in economics and business from the stockholm school of economics. following her 
studies and prior to joining cavotec in 1990, leena worked as cfo for several swedish companies, most notably gylling Ab and 
pA consulting group. she has been with cavotec for nearly 20 years, first as group financial director until 2005 and then as 
group controller overseeing the implementation of new financial reporting systems and creating a transparent and accurate financial 
structure for the group. leena is still employed by the cavotec group but in a non-executive position.
 
leena essén holds 588,686 shares in cavotec personally, 1,565,821 shares through Anelea holdings ltd. (of which leena holds 
10 per cent of the shares) and 177,100 shares through Anelea sverige Ab (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Anelea holdings ltd.).

nIColA GERBER
Member of the board. nicola holds a bA (hons) in business Management from university of Westminster. she is a regional 
Manager for sales and business development in the it sector and is currently working for cisco systems ltd. prior to her role 
with cisco nicola held sales executive roles at start-ups in eMeA, most notably with fineground networks, which was acquired 
by cisco in 2005. nicola has specialised in business development & strategy across european markets and since 2008 across 
Asia pacific markets based in new Zealand. 
 
nicola gerber does not hold any shares or warrants in cavotec.
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ChRIStER GRAnSkoG
Member of the board. christer holds an Msc in industrial Management and information systems from helsinki university of
technology. christer is former president and ceo of Kalmar industries (1998–2007). he has also worked as senior executive
vice president of partek corporation and president of partek cargotek Ab (1997–1998), president and ceo of sisu corporation
(1994–1997) and president and ceo of valmet Automation oy (1990–1994). he currently serves as chairman and ceo of oy
piceum Ab, of patria oyj and lännen tractors oy while also serving as deputy chairman of vr group oy. he is also a member of
the board of directors of Actiw oy and sarlin oy, a senior industrial adviser for eQt partners and a member of the Academy of
technical sciences in finland.

in the past five years, christer granskog has been, but is no longer, deputy chairman of the board of directors of rautaruukki
oyi and a member of the board of directors of Kalmar industries Ab.

christer granskog holds 20,000 shares in cavotec (through his wholly-owned holding company oy piceum Ab).
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joE PoPE
Member of the board. Joe has been chief executive and director of several major organisations, including twelve years as ceo 
of enZA and ten years on the board at tradenZ, culminating in his appointment as chairman. currently, he is chairman of 
revera ltd. and team talk ltd. as well as a trustee of Jayar trust. he is also an Accredited fellow of the institute of directors. 
Joe’s contribution to business creation in new Zealand was recognised by the governor general in the Queen’s birthday 
honours list of 2006, when he was appointed an officer of the new Zealand order of Merit. 

in the past five years, Joe pope has been, but is no longer, a member of the board of directors of Martinborough vineyard 
estates ltd., lambton harbour Management and chairman of the board of directors of dow group ltd., horticultural and food 
research institute of new Zealand ltd. and Wellington rugby football union ltd. and deputy chairman of the board of directors 
of new Zealand symphony orchestra ltd. 

Joe pope holds 10,000 shares in cavotec.
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lAkShmI khAnnA 
lakshmi holds a bA in Mathematics from punjab university. he is a registered chartered Accountant in the united Kingdom, 
and is a fellow of the institute of chartered Accountants in england and Wales. lakshmi is respectively a member of the non 
executive directors special interest group, a member of the valuations special interest group and a member of the financial 
reporting faculty of the institute of chartered Accountants in england and Wales. he is an Associate Member of the institute of 
chartered Accountants of india.   

lakshmi worked at priceWaterhousecoopers (pWc) in italy, from 1966 to his retirement, as a partner, in 2001. here he was 
responsible for client services for italian operations of multinational groups such as united technologies, general foods, trust 
house forte and ibM. 

lakshmi has also chaired pWc Management consultants in italy, been president of the rotary club of Milan sud est, and 
president of the World community service commission of rotary (lombardy). he has also been an advisor to the Joint task 
force confederation of italian industry, and the confederation of indian industry. he is president of the supervisory board of 
progetti industriali spA, Milan.

lakshmi conducts limited consulting services for the group.
  
lakshmi Khanna holds 263,406 shares in cavotec.

ERIk lAUtmAnn
Member of the board. After obtaining a bsc from the stockholm school of economics, erik’s professional career has primarily 
been in logistics and consulting. he has served as managing director of dhl in northern europe, as managing director of Jetpak 
group, and was managing director of catella when the company was founded in 1987.

since 2007, erik has been at cavotec as a non-executive board director and industrial advisor. in addition, he chairs six private 
equity and privately owned businesses, and is a board member at three other companies. erik is a fellow of the royal swedish 
Academy of engineering sciences (ivA), chairman of the board of ivA’s business executives council, and sits on the ivA board.

erik conducts limited consulting services for the group.

erik lautmann holds 97,802 shares in cavotec.
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ottonEl PoPESCo
Member of the board & ceo. ottonel holds an Msc in economics from bucharest Academy, an MbA from sorbonne 
university, an ingénieur professionnel de france-diploma from societé nationale des ingenieurs professionnels de france and 
a strategic Marketing Management-diploma from harvard business school. prior to joining cavotec in 1988, ottonel spent 
five years as sales and Marketing manager at Abb france (cKb Manufacturing division). he is board member of bravofly 
group switzerland and chairman of the port equipment Manufacturers Association (peMA) belgium. Moreover, ottonel 
is a registered professional engineer in france and an Associate member of the engineering committee of the American 
Association of port Authorities, usA.

ottonel popesco, together with related parties, holds 2,634,564 shares in cavotec.

StEfAn wIDEGREn
chairman and member of the board. stefan studied mechanical engineering, specialising in hydraulics and pneumatics, at
the royal institute of technology in stockholm from 1970 to 1975. he joined specimas srl (italy) in 1972 and co-founded
cavotec Ab two years later, assuming the role of managing director. cavotec acquired specimas in 1984 and stefan
was appointed chairman and ceo of the cavotec group in 1994. he was appointed executive chairman of cavotec Msl in
2007 and chairman of cavotec sA in 2011. stefan is sweden’s honorary consul in ticino, switzerland, a board member of the
swedish chamber of commerce in Zurich, switzerland, and a member of the rotary club lugano lago. stefan has also 
served as chairman of the union of international chambers of commerce in italy and as chairman of the swedish chamber of 
commerce in Milan.

stefan Widegren, together with related parties, holds 7,754,264 shares in cavotec.

  board of directors   |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 
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The Cavotec Executive Management Committee (EMC) consists of thirteen senior executive officers nominated by the CEO. 
The primary role of the EMC is to advise, support and assist the execution of the Board’s strategic management decisions. 

eXecutive MAnAgeMent
coMMittee 

name Position year of birth

christian bernadotte regional Manager, Americas 1949

ester cadau group human resources director 1975

erik chilò Managing director, cavotec sverige Ab & regional Manager, north europe 1958

luciano corbetta group Market unit Manager, ports & Maritime 1969

yann duclot group Manager, sales & Marketing 1975

diego fiorentini group cfo 1972

giorgio lingiardi group vp & cio / regional Manager, southern europe & Africa 1958

gary Matthews Managing director, cavotec uK / president, cavotec dabico us/cavotec inet 1966

gustavo Miller Managing director, cavotec china / regional Manager, far east 1964

patrick rosenwald Managing director, cavotec specimas / Managing director, cavotec MoorMaster 1970

Michael scheepers director, investor relations & corporate communications 1978

Juergen strommer Managing director, cavotec Middle east / regional Manager, Middle east & india 1970

Michael Widegren group vp, patents & trademarks / regional Manager, central europe 1955
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yAnn DUClot
group Manager, sales & Marketing. yann holds a degree in business Administration from the ecole superieure de commerce de
grenoble, france. before joining cavotec in 2007, where he has served as Middle east Aviation division Manager until 2010, 
yann was a business development and Key Account Manager at nexans, france and european Market Manager at Alcatel france.

yann duclot holds 7,062 shares in cavotec.

lUCIAno CoRBEttA
group Market unit Manager, ports & Maritime. luciano holds a Msc in Mechanical engineering from politecnico di Milano. 
he has served as Mechanical engineer at ttr srl and as export sales Manager at brevetti stendalto spA. 

luciano corbetta holds 20,060 shares in cavotec.

ChRIStIAn BERnADottE
regional Manager, Americas. christian holds a bsc in electrical engineering and an MbA. he is a member of the board of directors 
of Aria Analytics and swedish-American chamber of commerce, ohio, and is also the chairman of the board of cavotec dabico, 
cavotec usA and cavotec inet.

christian bernadotte holds 38,411 shares in cavotec.

EStER CADAU
group human resources director. ester holds a business Administration degree and a Master in human resources 
Management from the institut superieur de gestion (isg) in paris plus a political sciences degree from the university of cagliari. 
before joining cavotec, ester was an international human resources Manager in different public listed companies like ingenico, 
legris industries groupe, venteprivee.com and hr project Manager at Air france.

ester cadau holds 3,000 shares in cavotec.

ERIk ChIlò
Managing director, cavotec sverige Ab & regional Manager, north europe. erik holds a Msc in industrial engineering from 
linköping institute of technology. he has served in different positions in automation, telecommunications, intermodal transport 
and bulk handling.

erik chilò holds 40,121 shares in cavotec.
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GUStAVo mIllER
Managing director, cavotec china & regional Manager, far east. gustavo is a Mechanical engineer from catholic university of 
cordoba, Argentina. he has served as a Managing director at impsa Malaysia and as a general Manager tower cranes division 
at lindores group (Australia).

gustavo Miller holds 20,474 shares in cavotec.

PAtRICk RoSEnwAlD 
Managing director, cavotec specimas spA & Managing director, cavotec MoorMaster ltd. patrick holds a be in engineering 
(Mechanical) and a graduate diploma in business from curtin university, Western Australia. 

patrick rosenwald holds 45,153 shares in cavotec.

GARy mAtthEwS
Managing director, cavotec uK / president, cavotec dabico us/cavotec inet. gary holds a hnc in Mechanical engineering and 
an MbA from university of teesside. he has served as a Managing director in dabico europe.

gary Matthews holds 20,851 shares in cavotec.

GIoRGIo lInGIARDI
group vp & cio and regional Manager, southern europe & Africa. giorgio holds a Msc in Mechanical engineering from 
university of genoa italy.

giorgio lingiardi holds 10,000 shares in cavotec.

DIEGo fIoREntInI
group cfo. diego holds a degree in business Administration from università commerciale l.bocconi. before joining cavotec, 
diego was a finance manager and corporate treasurer at italmobiliare group, prior to which he was the head of back/middle 
office and an accountant at Abb.

diego fiorentini, together with related parties, holds 26,727 shares in cavotec.
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mIChAEl SChEEPERS 
director, investor relations & corporate communications. Michael studied corporate communications & public relations at 
fontys university for Applied sciences in the netherlands. After his studies he joined cavotec in 2002, where he has since 
held several positions, including communication Manager and group Manager, corporate communications. he is a member of 
the investor relations society in the united Kingdom, and a member of the european Association of communication directors.

Michael scheepers holds 38,880 shares in cavotec.

jUERGEn StRommER
Managing director, cavotec Middle east fZe & regional Manager, Middle east & india. Juergen holds a degree in Mechanical 
engineering from May eyth th, Kirchheim/teck and a degree in business Management from gArp stuttgart. he has served for 
eight years at thyssenKrupp as a director in the Middle east among other positions and has been a general Manager with the 
Al futtaim group.

Juergen strommer holds 20,851 shares in cavotec.

mIChAEl wIDEGREn
group vp & regional Manager, central europe. Michael studied Mechanical engineering, indek at Kth in stockholm. he started 
at cavotec sweden in 1985 and in 1988 started specimas inc. in toronto, canada responsible for the north American market. 
in 1990, Michael returned to cavotec sweden, where he became Md five years later. 

in 1998 he assumed responsibility of cavotec germany and cavotec Alfo where he took the first steps towards developing the 
Airports Market unit, becoming Md of the newly acquired cavotec fladung in 2004. in 2007 he moved to lugano, switzerland 
to assume his current role.

Michael Widegren, together with related parties, holds 1,087,018 shares in cavotec.
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corporAte
governAnce
since cavotec is a swiss company listed on the nAsdAQ oMX in 
stockholm, the corporate governance of cavotec is based on swiss 
and swedish rules and regulations, such as the swiss code of 
obligations (the “co”) and the swedish code of corporate governance 
(sw. Svensk kod för bolagsstyrning) (the “code”). 

thE SwEDISh CoDE of CoRPoRAtE GoVERnAnCE
the code applies to all swedish companies with shares listed on a 
regulated market in sweden and shall be fully applied at the first annual 
shareholders’ meeting held during the year following market listing. 
the company, although being a swiss company, has decided to apply 
the code, but need not obey all rules in the code but has options for 
selecting alternative solutions which it may deem to better suit to its 
circumstances provided that any non-compliances and the alternative 
solution are described and the reasons explained in the corporate 
governance report.

the company has applied the code from the time the shares have 
been listed on nAsdAQ oMX stockholm. however, since it is a swiss 

company subject to swiss rules and regulations are some deviations 
from the code. deviations that the company is already aware of have 
as far as possible be explained in the prospectus or otherwise in the 
company’s corporate governance report which has been drawn up for 
the first time for the 2011 financial year.

ShAREholDERS’ mEEtInGS 
General
the shareholders’ rights to resolve on company matters are exercised 
at the shareholders’ meeting. An ordinary shareholders’ meeting is to 
be held yearly within six months following the close of the business 
year. it is called by the board of directors or, if necessary, by the 
auditors. extraordinary shareholders’ meetings may be called by the 
board of directors, the liquidators or the auditors as often as necessary 
to safeguard the interests of the company. shareholders’ meetings 
are held at the domicile of the company or at such other place as 
the board of directors shall determine. since the company is listed 
in stockholm, the board of directors has the ambition to as far as 
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possible and as long as in compliance with swiss rules and regulations 
and if no public deed issue by a swiss notary is needed, to hold 
shareholders’ meetings in sweden. the shareholders’ meetings, 
deviating from the code, will be held in english and information and 
material will be available in english only. this is in accordance with 
an exemption granted by the swedish financial supervisory Authority. 
the minutes from shareholders’ meetings will be published on the 
company’s website.

Right to attend shareholders’ meetings
All shareholders who are registered directly in euroclear sweden’s 
and siX switzerland’s share registers on 16th April 2013 and who 
notify the company of their intention to attend the shareholders’ 
meeting at the latest by the date specified in the convening 
letter shall be entitled to attend the shareholders’ meeting and 
vote according to the number of shares they hold. shareholders 
may attend shareholders’ meetings in person or through a proxy. 
shareholders may usually register for shareholders’ meetings 
in several different ways, which are described in the meeting 
convening letter.

notice of shareholders’ meetings and shareholder initiatives
notice of a shareholders’ meeting is given by means of a publication 
in the swiss commercial gazette or by letter to the shareholders of 
record as well as through a press release. between the day of the 
publication or the mailing of the notice and the day of the meeting 
there must be a time period of not less than 20 calendar days. the 
notice of the shareholders’ meeting must indicate the agenda and the 
motions. the notice will also be published on the company’s website. 

stating the purpose of the meeting and the agenda to be submitted, 
one or more shareholders representing at least ten per cent of the 
share capital may request the board of directors, in writing to call 
an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting. in such case, the board of 
directors must call a shareholders’ meeting within two weeks.

nomination Process
the process for the nomination of board members for cavotec has 
been revised in 2011 in relation to the move from the nZX in new 
Zealand to nAsdAQ oMX stockholm in sweden. the objective 
has been to apply the swedish corporate governance code, 
while still respect the swiss laws and regulations applicable to a 
swiss company. the ultimate goal has been to adopt a nomination 
process that is open and transparent to all our shareholders and 
stakeholders.

following this process and criteria the chair of the board of directors, 
stefan Widegren, started already March 2011 a close dialog with major 
shareholders, the board and our legal and financial advisers in sweden 
and switzerland in order to propose a new corporate governance 

structure for cavotec sA. the initial proposal for the composition of 
the nomination committee and the board of directors of the company 
were made public in the prospectus of october 14th, 2011.

the nomination committee was appointed on october 6th, 2011 in 
accordance to the Articles of Association of the company. please note, 
that while the nomination committee in a swiss company is appointed 
by the board of directors, the composition of the cavotec nomination 
committee will follow the recommendations of the swedish corporate 
governance code.

the appointed nomination committee members are:

Jack groesbeek, chairman of the committee and founder shareholder
lars hellman, founder shareholder
stefan Widegren, chairman of cavotec sA and founder shareholder

the committee members represent some 23% of all votes in the 
company. A way of contact with the nomination committee has been 
establish through the company website www.cavotec.com.

in october 2012 the committee began preparing a proposal for the 
board of directors to be submitted to the Annual general Meeting 2012. 
in line with the formal evaluation process adopted by the committee, the 
chairman with the assistance of the nomination committee members, 
initiated the yearly evaluation of the work performed by the board 
was undertaken, while also performing a renewed assessment of the 
current requirements of the representation, experience, background 
and competence in the board. these requirements were compared 
with the expertise currently available within the board.

on January 29th, 2013 the nomination committee met in lugano 
in order to discuss various proposals with major shareholders 
(representing more than 55% of the votes) and the ceo, ottonel 
popesco. furthermore stefan Widegren visited new Zealand in mid 
March in order to meet-up with investors, shareholders and nZ board 
members, and among other topics also discuss the proposals for the 
future composition of the board of directors. After having received the 
support and approval by the board for its final proposal on March 19th, 
2013. the nomination committee defined its final proposal as follows:

According to Art. 13 of the Articles of Association the directors are 
elected each year to hold office until the following annual shareholders’ 
meeting. Directors may be re-elected.

It is proposed the Annual General Meeting to be chaired by Stefan 
Widegren, while the President of the Annual General Meeting will be 
Fabio Cannavale, who will be present in Lugano.

Fabio Cannavale, Leena Essén, Nicola Gerber, Christer Granskog, 



48

Lakshmi C. Khanna, Erik Lautmann, Ottonel Popesco and Stefan 
Widegren will stand for re-election. Joe Pope does not stand for re-
election. 

The Nomination Committee proposes to reduce the number of board 
members to eight and further proposes that Fabio Cannavale, Leena 
Essén, Nicola Gerber, Christer Granskog, Lakshmi C. Khanna, Erik 
Lautmann, Ottonel Popesco and Stefan Widegren be re-elected as 
Directors for a further one-year term of office expiring at our annual 
general meeting to be held in 2014.

The Nomination Committee furthermore proposes to nominate Stefan 
Widegren as Chairman of the Board of Directors.

With respect to the requirements in the Swedish Corporate Governance 
Code (the Code) that a majority of the directors elected by the 
shareholders’ meeting are to be independent of the company and its 
executive management and that at least two of this majority also are 
to be independent in relation to the company’s major shareholders, 
the Nomination Committee has carried out the following assessment:

Christer Granskog, Lakshmi Khanna, Erik Lautmann, Nicola Gerber and 
Fabio Cannavale are all independent of the company and its executive 
management. 

Christer Granskog, Lakshmi Khanna, Erik Lautmann and Nicola 
Gerber are all also independent in relation to the company’s major 
shareholders.

The Nomination Committee therefore concludes that all requirements 
of director independence as set out in the Code are met.

Finally, the Nomination Committee proposes that Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers SA, Lugano, Switzerland be re-elected as Cavotec’s 
independent auditor for business year 2013.

Shareholders representing more than 50% of the votes support the 
nomination of the Nomination Committee.

in the notice of Meeting for the Annual general Meeting 2013, the 
committee will present its proposal regarding number of board 
members, names of the proposed board members, and the chair of the 
board. the committee will also submit its proposal for remuneration to 
the chair and other board members not employed in the company, as 
well as the committee work.

External auditor
At the Annual general Meeting 2013 the nomination committee will 
also propose to appoint pricewaterhousecoopers sA, lugano, as the 
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Board and Committee meetings in Cavotec SA in 2012

independent auditor of the company until the Annual general Meeting 
2014. daniel Ketterer is the auditor in charge. he took over this function 
for the business year 2011. 
 
thE BoARD of DIRECtoRS
the composition of the board of directors is set out in section “board 
of directors” and the members of the board are elected for the 
period until the end of the next annual shareholders’ meeting. the 
board of directors constitutes itself, but the chairman of the board 
of directors is elected by the shareholders’ meeting as set out in the 
Articles of Association. the members of the nomination committee, 
the remuneration committee and the Audit committee, as well as the 
respective chairmen, are elected from and by the board members, 
as further described below in relation to the description of each 
committee. the board of directors has a company secretary that 
has the duties and competencies set out by swiss law. furthermore, 
the secretary assists the board, the chairman and the committees, 
to co-ordinate and fulfil their duties and assignments in accordance 
with the board of directors internal regulations (comparable to rules 
of procedures and adopted by the board of directors).

the board of directors is entrusted with the ultimate management 
of the company, as well as with the supervision and control of the 
management. the board of directors is the ultimate executive body 
of the company and shall determine the principles of the business 
strategy and policies. the board of directors shall exercise its function 
as required by law, the Articles of Association and the board of 
directors’ internal regulations. the board shall be authorised to pass 
resolutions on all matters that are not reserved to the general meeting 
of shareholders or to other executive bodies by applicable law, the 
Articles of Association or the internal regulations.

by swiss law, the board of directors has the following non-transferable 
and inalienable duties:
a) the determination of the strategy of the company and the group 

and the issuance of the necessary directives;
b) the establishment of a framework of the organisation;
c) the basic structuring of the accounting system, of a system of 

internal financial controls, and of the financial planning;
d) the approval of the appointment (and suspension) of the officers entrusted 

with the management of the company or with its representation;
e) the supervision of management, in particular in relation to compliance 

with the law, the articles and corporate regulations, charters and 
directives;

f) decisions on the business report consisting of the annual financial 
statements, the annual report, and consolidated financial 
statements including interim published reports and determination 
of the accounting standard;

g) the preparation of the general meeting of shareholders of the 
company and the implementation of its resolutions;

h) notification to the judge in case of a capital loss (“unterbilanz”) of 
the company and in case of over indebtedness (“Überschuldung”; 
art. 725-725a co).

by swiss law, the board of directors also has the following non transferable 
competencies: decisions in connection with capital increases pursuant 
to art. 651a, 652g, 653g co (acknowledgement of capital increase) 
and art. 651 iv co (increase of share capital in the case of authorised 
capital); decisions pursuant to art. 634a i co (shares not fully paid in) and 
resolutions pursuant to the swiss Merger act.

the board of directors held eight board meetings as cavotec sA 
in 2012.

Board Audit Remuneration nomination
held Attended held Attended held Attended held Attended

fabio cannavale 8 8
leena essén 8 8 8 8
nicola gerber 8 8
christer granskog 8 8 8 8 4 4
Jack groesbeek 3 3
lars hellman 3 3
lakshmi Khanna 8 8 8 8 4 4
erik lautmann 8 8 4 4
Joe pope 8 7 8 7 4 4
ottonel popesco 8 8
stefan Widegren 8 8 3 3
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BoARD CommIttEES
the board of directors currently has three board committees, the 
nomination committee, the Audit committee and the remuneration 
committee and the composition and tasks of the committees are 
regulated in the board of directors’ internal regulations. below is a brief 
description of the committees as per the current internal regulations 
(which are continuously reviewed and if deemed appropriate by the 
board of directors amended).

nomination Committee
the nomination committee shall be a committee established by the 
board of directors of the company. this is in line with swiss law 
but will constitute a deviation from the code that prescribes that the 
nomination committee shall be determined by the shareholders. to 
follow the rules that apply to swiss companies the board of directors 
has decided that nomination committee shall be established by the 
board of directors. the composition of the nomination committee shall 
however be in line with the code.

the nomination committee shall ensure that the company has a 
formal and transparent method for the nomination and appointment 
of board members. the objectives of the nomination committee 
are to regularly review and, when appropriate, recommend changes 
to the composition of the board of directors to ensure that the 

company has, and maintains, the right composition of board 
members to effectively govern and provide guidance to business, 
and identify and recommend to the board of directors individuals 
for nomination as members of the board and its committees 
(taking into account such factors as it deems appropriate, including 
experience, qualifications, judgment and the ability to work with 
other board members).

the current members of the nomination committee in cavotec sA are 
Jack groesbeek, lars hellman and stefan Widegren. the nomination 
committee has met twice in 2012. At the date of this Annual report 
the nomination committee of cavotec sA has met once in 2013.

Audit Committee
the objective of the Audit committee is to assist the board of directors 
in discharging its responsibilities relative to financial reporting and 
regulatory compliance. Members of the Audit committee shall comprise 
members of the board appointed by the board and in accordance 
with the code. the members of the Audit committee shall be not less 
than three, all of whom shall be board members with a majority to be 
independent board members. one member must have a financial or 
accounting background.

the current members of the Audit committee in cavotec sA are 
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 Board of Directors
 EUR

 Board fees  Short-term employee 
benefits 

 Post-employment 
benefits 

 Consultancy  total

 fabio cannavale 26,000 1,454 2,496 - 29,951
 leena essén  31,000 117,404 11,249 - 159,652
 nicola gerber 26,000 1,163 1,996 - 29,159
 christer granskog 36,000 1,366 2,496 - 39,862
 lakshmi Khanna 38,500 -   -   77,908 116,408
 erik lautmann 33,500 1,498 2,572 9,975 47,546
 Joe pope 36,000 635 1,692 - 38,327
 ottonel popesco  
 (chief executive officer) -   586,755 25,184

                        
 -   611,939

 stefan Widegren (chairman) 105,000 291,482 - 168,426 564,907
 total remuneration 332,000 1,001,757 47,686 256,309 1,637,752

please refer to note 9 on page 95 for a detailed overview of the share ownership.
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lakshmi Khanna, leena essén, christer granskog and Joe pope. 
currently all the members are financially experienced and have relevant 
finance and/or auditing experience, one of them, namely lakshmi 
Khanna, is a chartered accountant. the Audit committee of cavotec 
sA met eight times in 2012, and the twice in 2013.

Remuneration Committee
the purpose of the remuneration committee is to regularly review, 
and recommend changes to board members’ remuneration to ensure 
that it is at an appropriate level, and effectively managed, to best 
advance the business objectives of cavotec and assist the board of 
directors in the establishment of remuneration policies and practices 
for, and in discharging the board of directors responsibilities relative to 
remuneration setting and review of, the company’s ceo, other senior 
executives, and board members. the compensation plans should 
reflect market conditions in the various countries where cavotec is 
operating. during 2012, the remuneration committee of cavotec sA 
has carried out, with the support of the consulting firm tower Watson, a 
complete position analysis of senior managers and linked the outcome 
to compensation database statistics for all markets.

the current members of the remuneration committee in cavotec sA 
are christer granskog, lakshmi Khanna, erik lautmann and Joe pope. 
the remuneration committee of cavotec sA met four times in 2012.

Group key management
the composition of the group Key Management is set out in the 
section “executive Management committee”. 

cavotec’s operational structure is reasonably flat in order to ensure 
that the group’s operations and decision-making processes are 
efficient and responsive. strategic, group-related operations are the 
responsibility of the ceo and cfo with the support of the regional 
Managers and the Managing directors. All material decisions within the 
day-to-day operations of the company are taken by the ceo and cfo.

due to the inherent international character of the group, the Managing 
directors of local cavotec companies – who are close to their 
customers, suppliers and staff in their respective time zones, cultural 
environment and geographical area – take day-to-day operational 
decisions. Managing directors report to regional Managers, who 
in turn report to the ceo. besides a few exceptions, both regional 
Managers and Managing directors live in the same country and region 
as they operate in. often the regional Manager is also a Managing 
director of a major company within his or her region. the chairman, 
the ceo and cfo are all working out of cavotec’s corporate office 
in switzerland. cavotec has also located to the corporate office its 
functions for administration, business development, corporate 
communications, erp & logistics, finance & Accounting, human 

resources, information technology, investor relations & pr, patents & 
trademarks, sales & Marketing, strategic corporate projects, technical 
r&d, treasury and other special advisory roles.

the Cavotec Executive management Committee – EmC
the eMc is nominated by the ceo and currently consists of thirteen 
members.

the eMc is made up of members from the group’s most experienced 
and knowledgeable management team. this includes top corporate 
staff, several regional Managers and several group Market unit 
Managers.

the eMc advises on and supports the implementation of global 
strategies as defined by the ceo in specific areas. it advises the ceo 
on strategic management decisions and helps to implement such 
decisions according to each member’s specific responsibilities or as 
directed by the ceo. the eMc also assists the ceo with the evaluation 
and implementation of company acquisitions.

the eMc discusses and defines strategies, policies, acquisitions, 
overall developments and administrative improvements. the group 
Key Management implements recommendations made by the eMc. 
the ceo presents the most strategic recommendations to the board of 
directors for their consideration and decision. the ceo is responsible 
for the day-to-day running of the group.

once a board decision is taken, the eMc assists the ceo to implement 
the same. eMc members also support the integration teams set up to 
oversee all new acquisitions.

REmUnERAtIon AnD InCEntIVE PlAnS
Remuneration of the Board of Directors
the remuneration to the members of the board of directors in cavotec sA, 
is, in deviation from the code, resolved by the board of directors as set 
out in the articles of association. in addition, board members may receive 
remuneration for consultancy services provided to the company. none of 
the members of the board of directors are entitled to any benefits when 
resigning from the board, in their capacity as board members. however, 
board members may be entitled to benefits according to employment 
or consultancy agreements that will continue even if the board member 
would resign as board member.

Remuneration levels for Senior Executives
to ensure strong cohesion across the group, some 15 years ago 
cavotec introduced a system under which bonuses for eMc members, 
regional Managers, Managing directors and other senior executives 
are determined by overall, consolidated group results. this ‘one-
bottom- line’ policy works well and has been instrumental to the group 
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becoming a genuinely global player. cavotec is mindful that it is a 
mini-multinational. however, as cavotec grows, the regional Manager 
role is likely to evolve.

Incentive plan for Senior Executives
cavotec’s board of directors has reviewed current remuneration 
practices in order to retain and attract talented senior executives as 
well as aligning senior executives’ and shareholders’ interests. As a 
result of the review, the board of directors has to recommended a 
share based long-term incentive plan with performance requirements 
to be introduced in 2012 (ltip 2012). the ltip 2012 was approved 
by the AgM in May 2012 and was subscribed to for over 90% by 
the selected management. An identical plan (ltip 2013) is planned 
to be proposed to cavotec’s Annual general Meeting in 2013 for 
shareholder approval.

IntERnAl ContRol SyStEm (ICS)
the company has not established a separate department for internal 
control. this task is performed by Audit committee of the board of 
directors and the board of directors. Moreover, at group level each 
Managing director of a legal entity together with the legal and/or 
operational entity’s finance department and the director of internal 
audit – reporting to the chairman – is responsible for ensuring that 
the necessary controls are performed along with adequate monitoring. 
internal controls comprise the control of the company’s and group’s 
organisation, procedures and remedial measures. the objective 
is to ensure reliable and correct financial reporting, and to ensure 
that the company’s and group’s financial reports are prepared in 
accordance with law and applicable accounting standards and that 
other requirements are complied with. the internal control system is 
also intended to monitor compliance with the company’s and group’s 
policies, principles and instructions. in addition, the control system 
monitors security for the company assets and monitors that the 
company’s resources are exploited in a cost-effective and adequate 
manner. internal control also involves following up on the implemented 
information and business system, and risk analysis. 
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sWiss coMpAny 
lAW overvieW
The purpose of this section is solely to set out the main legal general 
principles governing (i) the organisation of a Swiss stock company 
(in Italian: società anonima, abbreviated “SA”), (ii) its corporate 
governance as well as (iii) certain specific issues concerning the right 
of the shareholders, pursuant to articles 620 et seq. of the Swiss 
Code of Obligations. This note refers exclusively to Swiss corporate 
law as set forth in the Swiss Code of Obligations. It is furthermore not 
intended to be exhaustive and the rules and provisions covered herein 
are subject to constant changes. Thus, no reliance should be placed 
on any information or views contained in this note without obtaining 
specific professional advice.

oRGAnISAtIon of A ComPAny lImItED By ShARES (SoCIEtÁ 
AnonImA, “SA”)  
the sA has its own legal personality separate from its members, 
its own name and a fixed nominal capital divided into shares. the 
shareholders’ personal liability is limited to the full payment of the par 
value of their shares; there is no further liability of the shareholders for 
obligations of the sA, nor do they have any legal obligation to provide 
additional capital to the sA at a later stage.

the share capital
the minimum amount of the share capital is chf 100,000. the 
share capital can subsequently be increased at any time by way of a 
shareholders’ resolution and a board resolution amending the Articles 
of Association. 

According to swiss law, three ways to increase the share capital of 
a corporation are available: the ordinary share capital increase, the 
increase out of authorised share capital and the increase out of 
conditional share capital.

the ordinary increase of the share capital must be resolved according 
to art. 650 co by the general meeting of shareholders and it must be 
carried out by the board of directors within three months. 

by way of an increase out of authorised share capital, the shareholders’ 
meeting may authorise with a 2/3 majority (and representing the 
absolute majority of the votes) the board of directors to increase the 
share capital within a period of two years in an amount not exceeding 
half of the existing share capital.

the conditional share capital, resolved by the general meeting of 
shareholders, may be used by the board of directors in connection 
with the issuance of convertible bonds, notes, warrants or similar debt 
instruments, as well as for employee participation plans.

the internal organisation
the corporate bodies of a sA are the general meeting of shareholders, 
the board of directors and the auditors. 

the Articles of Association may authorise the board of directors to 
delegate the management of all or part of the company’s business to 
individual members or third parties in accordance with its organisational 
regulations. Where management of the company’s business has not 
been delegated, it is the responsibility of all the members of the board 
of directors. the law provides a list of non-transferable duties.

the general meeting of shareholders
the general meeting of shareholders is the supreme governing body of 
the sA and is usually summoned by the board of directors.

shareholders’ meetings of an sA must be held at least once a year; in 
particular, the meeting that approves the company’s annual financial 
statements and the allocation of profits - the annual ordinary general 
meeting of shareholders - must take place no later than six months after 
the close of the financial year (which may or may not correspond to the 
calendar year). the following items must be included in the agenda of 
the annual ordinary general meeting of shareholders (i) the approval 
of the annual report, the annual financial statements of the company 
and the consolidated financial statements (if such statements are 
required by law) for the corresponding financial year, (ii) the granting of 
discharge to the members of the board of directors, (iii) election of the 
members of the board of directors and (iv) election of the auditors. in 
addition, extraordinary general meetings of shareholders may also be 
convened in specific cases.

According to swiss corporate law, the general meeting is convened by 
the board of directors or, where necessary, by the external auditors. 
the liquidators and the representatives of bond creditors also have 
the right to convene general meetings. A general meeting may also be 
convened by one or more shareholders together representing at least 
10 per cent of the share capital. shareholders together representing 
shares with a par value of chf 1 million may demand that an item be 
placed on the agenda. Meetings are convened and items placed on 
the agenda by written request, including details of agenda items and 
motions.

the notice convening the meeting must include the agenda items 
and the motions of the board of directors and the shareholders who 
have requested that a general meeting shall be summoned or that an 
item shall be placed on the agenda. no resolutions may be made on 
motions relating to agenda items that were not duly notified; exceptions 
to this are motions to convene an extraordinary general meeting or to 
carry out a special audit and to appoint an auditor at the request of a 
shareholder. no advance notice is required to propose motions on duly 
notified agenda items and to debate items without passing resolutions.

the owners or representatives of all the company’s shares may, if no 
objection is raised, hold a general meeting without complying with 
the formal requirements for convening meetings. this meeting may 
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discuss and pass binding resolutions on all matters within the remit of 
the general meeting, provided that the owners or representatives of all 
the shares are present.

unless mandatory statutory provisions or the Articles of Association 
provide otherwise, the shareholders’ meeting passes its resolutions and 
performs elections with the absolute majority of the votes represented 
at the meeting without regard to the number of shareholders present 
and shares represented in such meeting. the chairman of the meeting 
decides on the voting procedure.

the Board of Directors
Structure of the Board of Directors
the board of directors may consist of one or several members. board 
members may be either employees of the company (in this case 
employment law would be applicable) or stand — as a rule — in a 
mandate relationship with the company.

the board of directors organises itself (i.e. determines its chairman, 
deputy chairman and its secretary, as well as the further functions, 
if any, of its members). the board members and the signatories as 
well as their corresponding signing powers must be entered in the 
commercial register.

At least one board member or signatory of the sA with single signature 
right (or two with joint signature right) must be resident in switzerland, 
irrespective of his or her nationality.

Board meetings
in principle, the board of directors must meet and deliberate. board 
meetings should take place as often as the business requires. A 
board member may not be represented at a meeting by a proxy but 
must attend personally. swiss law does not provide for deputy board 
members.

that said, resolutions may be taken by so-called circular letters, which 
typically take the form of a written proposal by the chairman of the 
board of directors, which is adopted provided that the applicable 
majority requirement is met and that no board member requires a 
meeting.

deliberations and resolutions shall be evidenced in minutes, which 
shall be signed by the meeting chairman and the secretary and, in the 
case of a circular board resolution, by all board members.

Duties of the Board of Directors
the business activities of an sA are managed by or under direction of 
its board of directors. the board is responsible for the execution of 
the decisions of the shareholders’ meeting, for keeping the corporate 

books and minutes, and, in general, for the sound management of the 
company’s affairs.

certain duties of the board of directors are inalienable and may not be 
delegated to other bodies of the company, nor may they be transferred 
or made subject to approval of the shareholders’ meeting. however, the 
board of directors is permitted to delegate specific powers and duties, 
in particular day-to-day business operations, to one or more board 
members or to an executive management. such delegation must be 
based on special internal regulations that may only be enacted if the 
Articles of Association empower the board of directors to do so. the 
internal regulations contain provisions governing the executive bodies, 
the delegation of powers and duties, the supervision and control, the 
meetings and decision making process of the corporate bodies and 
the reporting system.

the managers and other executive employees may be swiss or foreign 
nationals and may or may not reside in switzerland. foreign nationals 
employed to work in switzerland do, however, need a special work 
permit.

Liability of the Board and management members
Members of the board as well as third parties entrusted with 
management responsibilities must carry out their duties with due care 
and must duly safeguard the interests of the company. the board 
members are liable for mismanagement of the sA. if the day-to-day 
management of the company has been delegated, the liability of the 
board members is reduced to the proper choice, supervision and 
instruction of the management.

the auditors
the statutory auditors may be individuals or companies. the sA has 
to keep proper books, records and accounts and prepare a business 
report each year including formal financial statements consisting of a 
balance sheet, a profit and loss statement and an attachment (notes). 
these statements must be audited by the auditors, whose formal 
report is submitted to the annual general meeting of shareholders for 
approval. At least one of the auditors needs to be domiciled or at least 
have a branch office in switzerland.

swiss companies are obliged to keep proper accounting records 
available for presentation in switzerland. formal financial statements 
must be prepared (at least) annually, approved by the statutory 
auditors, adopted at the annual shareholders’ meeting, and eventually 
filed with the tax authorities together with the tax return. no filing with 
any publicly accessible registry is necessary, however.

public companies must submit their annual financial statements to the 
auditors for an ordinary examination.
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financial year
the financial year shall be determined by the board of directors. At the 
end of each financial year, the business report, consisting of the annual 
accounts, the annual report and as the case may be, the consolidated 
accounts, is to be prepared pursuant to the statutory provisions.

Selected issues concerning shareholders’ rights
Shareholders’ meetings
As a protection for minority shareholders, the board of directors is 
further required to convene an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting 
if so resolved by the shareholders’ meeting or requested by 
shareholders holding, in aggregate, at least 10 per cent of the nominal 
share capital of the company. Moreover, shareholders holding shares 
of an aggregate par value of chf 1 million have the right to request 
that a specific proposal be discussed and voted upon at the next 
shareholders’ meeting.

Information right of shareholders / special audit
An independent investigation covering specific matters may be 
required by minority shareholders holding 10 per cent of the share 
capital or chf 2 million worth of shares (calculated by the par value). 
the minority shareholders shall make it plausible that the activities 
performed by the bodies of the company or the company itself cause 
such shareholders damage.

in addition to ordering an investigation, every shareholder, irrespective of 
its shareholding, may request information at the shareholders’ meeting 
from the board of directors under the condition that the information 
is needed to make use of the voting rights. the company’s bodies 
shall deny access to the information if it contains business secrets. 
releasing a piece of information protected by the confidentiality could 
expose the board of directors to liability claims by shareholders or 
creditors of the company as well as penal sanctions.

Pre-emptive rights
under swiss law, any share issue, whether for cash or non-cash 
consideration, is subject to the prior approval of the shareholders at 
a shareholders’ meeting. shareholders have a pre-emptive right to 
subscribe for shares, option bonds, convertible bonds, or similar debt 
instruments with option rights in proportion to the nominal amount 
of shares held. A resolution adopted at a shareholders’ meeting by 
a supermajority of at least two thirds of the shares and the absolute 
majority of the nominal share capital represented at such meeting may 
limit or suspend pre-emptive rights under certain special circumstances. 
in particular, such limitation of the pre-emptive right of subscription 
of the shareholders must be grounded on compelling reasons, such 
as the acquisition of a company or a merger, must safeguard the 
principle of equal treatment of the shareholders and cannot be used to 
intentionally modify the shareholding structure in the company.

Conflicts of interest
the swiss code of obligations requires directors and senior 
management to safeguard the interests of the company, and, in 
this connection, also imposes a duty of loyalty and duty of care on 
the company’s directors and officers. the directors and officers are 
personally liable against the company for breaches of these duties.

Right to challenge shareholders’ resolutions in court
Any shareholder may take legal action against the company to 
challenge resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting violating the law or 
the Articles of Association. in particular, resolutions are challengeable, 
which:

- withdraw or limit shareholders’ rights thereby violating the law or the 
Articles of Association (for example violation of the procedural rules 
regarding summoning of a shareholders’ meeting);

- withdraw or limit shareholders’ rights without proper reason (for 
example a unnecessary capital increase to dilute the minority 
shareholders’ participation);

- discriminate against or disadvantage shareholders in a manner 
not justified by the company purpose (for example the attribution 
of pre-emptive rights only to shareholders working actively in the 
company); and

- withdraw the profit orientation of the company without the consent 
of all shareholders.

the right to challenge shareholders resolutions lapses if a suit is not 
filed within two months after the respective shareholders’ meeting.

Claim for invalidation of shareholders’ resolutions
Any shareholder may cause the judge to declare null and void 
shareholders’ resolutions, which, in particular:

- withdraw or limit the shareholders’ rights to participate in the 
shareholders’ meeting, the minimum voting right, the right to sue 
and other rights granted by mandatory provisions of law;

- limit the shareholders’ rights to control beyond the extent provided 
by law; and

- disregard the fundamental structures of the company or violate the 
provisions for the protection of the capital.

such a suit can be filed at any time.
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the boArd of directors 
of cAvotec sA 
is pleAsed to present 
the consolidAted finAnciAl 
stAteMents for 2012

Stefan Widegren
chairman 

ottonel popesco
chief executive officer 

this report is dated 19 March 2013 and is signed on behalf 
of the board of cavotec sA by

please note that all reported amounts in this report are in euro. 
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EUR 000’s notes 2012 2011
revenue from sales of goods  220,072  189,969 
other income 7  4,810  3,098 
raw materials and components  (110,171)  (96,288)
employee benefit costs 8  (58,732)  (49,378)
operating expenses 9  (34,243)  (30,210)

Gross operating Result  21,736  17,191 

depreciation and amortisation  (3,758)  (4,507)
 
operating Result  17,978  12,684 

non-operating costs 10  -  (2,320)
interest expenses - net 11  (1,263)  (1,573)
currency exchange differences - net 11  (477)  1,514 

Profit before income tax  16,237  10,305 

income taxes 12  (4,045)  (4,461)

Profit for the year  12,192  5,844 

other comprehensive income:
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations  856  1,418 
Actuarial gain (loss)  (30)  (244)

total comprehensive income for the year  13,018 7,018 

total comprehensive income attributable to:
equity holders of the group  13,138  7,155 
non-controlling interest  (120)  (137)
total  13,018  7,018 

Profit / (loss) attributed to:
equity holders of the group  12,319  5,948 
non-controlling interest  (127)  (104)
total  12,192  5,844 

basic and diluted earnings per share attributed
to the equity holders of the group 29  0.173  0.089 
Average number of shares  71,332,700  66,501,741 

CAVotEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Comprehensive Income

consolidAted finAnciAl stAteMents
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CAVotEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Balance Sheet

Assets
EUR 000’s

notes 2012 2011

Current assets
cash and cash equivalents  10,313  12,952 
trade receivables 13  50,583  42,612 
tax assets 14  530  554 
other current receivables 15  3,596  6,491 
inventories 16  39,561  29,105 
total current assets  104,583  91,714 

non-current assets
property, plant and equipment 17  28,840  24,582 
intangible assets 18  67,709  66,379 
non-current financial assets 19  153  254 
deferred tax assets 20  7,094  2,766 
other non-current receivables  2,346  4,047 
total non-current assets  106,141  98,027 

total assets  210,725  189,741 

Equity and liabilities 
EUR 000’s

notes 2012 2011

Current liabilities
bank overdrafts 21  (1,829)  -   
current financial liabilities 21  (2,911)  (4,277)
trade payables 22  (36,973)  (33,949)
other current liabilities 23  (19,719)  (15,383)
total current liabilities  (61,432)  (53,609)

non-current liabilities
non-current financial liabilities 21  (30,088)  (32,387)
deferred tax liabilities 24  (4,345)  (3,411)
other non-current liabilities  (885)  (1,591)
provision for risks and charges 25  (7,146)  (3,870)
total non-current liabilities  (42,464)  (41,259)

total liabilities  (103,896)  (94,868)

Equity
equity attributable to owners of the parent 27,28  (106,939)  (94,968)
non-controlling interests  110  95 
total equity  (106,829)  (94,873)

total equity and liabilities  (210,725)  (189,741)
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EUR 000’s

Equity related to 
owners 

of the parent

Reserves Retained
earnings

Equity related to 
owners 

of the parent

non-controlling
interest

total
equity

balance as at 1 January 2011  (42,578)  (596)  (33,286)  (76,460)  (348)  (76,807)

profit for the year - -  (5,948)  (5,948)  104  (5,844)
exchange differences on translation  -  (1,451) -  (1,451)  33  (1,418)
Actuarial (gain) loss -  244 -  244  -  244 

total comprehensive income 
and expenses  -  (1,206)  (5,948)  (7,154)  137  (7,017)

reclassification  (35,531) - 35,531  - -  - 
capital increase  (12,444) - -  (12,444) -  (12,444)
own shares reserve - 81 (81)  - -  - 
share premium reserve - (1,751) 1,751 - - -
dividends - -  1,395  1,395 -  1,395 
reduction in non-controlling interest -  -  (306)  (306)  306  - 

transactions with shareholders  (47,975) (1,670) 38,290  (11,355)  306  (11,049)

Balance as at 31 December 2011  (90,553)  (3,472)  (944)  (94,968)  95  (94,873)

balance as at 1 January 2012  (90,553)  (3,472)  (944)  (94,968)  95  (94,873)

profit for the year - -  (12,319)  (12,319)  127  (12,192)
exchange differences on translation  -  (850) -  (850)  (6)  (856)
Actuarial (gain) loss - 30 -  30 - 30

total comprehensive income 
and expenses  -  (820)  (12,319)  (13,138)  121  (13,018)

capital reduction 1,167 - -  1,167 -  1,167 
capital increase -  - -  -  (106)  (106)

transactions with shareholders  1,167  -  -  1,167  (106)  1,061 

Balance as at 31 December 2012  (89,386)  (4,292)  (13,263)  (106,940)  110  (106,830)

CAVotEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Changes in Equity
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EUR 000’s 2012 2011

Profit for the year  12,192  5,844 

Adjustments for:
net interest expenses  949  1,303 
current taxes  7,470  5,043 
depreciation and amortisation  3,758  4,507 
deferred tax  (3,425)  (582)
provision for risks and charges  5,148  1,859 
capital gain or loss on assets  (17)  (49)
other items not involving cash flows  305  270 
interest paid  (967)  (1,374)
taxes paid  (5,792)  (2,634)

 7,429  8,343 

Cash flow before change in working capital  19,621  14,187 

Impact of changes in working capital
inventories  (11,094)  (1,443)
trade receivables  (8,207)  (15,155)
other current receivables  2,849  (4,076)
trade payables  2,995  10,304 
other current liabilities  4,034  1,347 
long term receivables  1,702  - 
Impact of changes involving working capital  (7,721)  (9,023)

net cash inflow /(outflow) from operating activities  11,900  5,164 

financial activities
increase (decrease) of loans and borrowings  (3,868)  4,517 
dividend payment  -  (1,395)
capital reduction  (1,167)  - 
Acquisition of non-controlling interest  -  (410)
net cash inflow /(outflow) from financial activities  (5,035)  2,712 

Investing activities
investments in property, plant and equipment  (6,970)  (6,609)
investments in intangible assets  (1,350)  (180)
(increase) decrease in non-current financial assets  101  (69)
deferred consideration (1,516) -
increase in other assets (2,653) -
disposal of assets  205  151 
net cash outflow from investing activities  (12,183)  (6,707)

cash at the beginning of the year  12,952  12,203 
cash flow for the year  (5,318)  1,169 
currency exchange differences  849  (420)
Cash at the end of the year  8,484  12,952 

Cash comprises:
cash and cash equivalents  10,313  12,952 
bank overdrafts  (1,829)  - 
total  8,484  12,952 

CAVotEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Cash flows - Indirect method
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consolidAted finAnciAl stAteMents

notE 1. GEnERAl InfoRmAtIon
cavotec is a global engineering group that manufactures power transmission, distribution and control technologies that form the link between fixed and mobile 
equipment in the ports & Maritime, Airports, Mining & tunnelling and general industry sectors. All engineering and most manufacturing of cavotec’s products and 
systems take place at nine specialised engineering centres of excellence in germany (three), sweden, norway, italy, the united states (two) and new Zealand. 
cavotec has fully owned sales companies spread across the world which monitor local markets and co-operate with cavotec’s centres of excellence. 

the financial statements of the cavotec group for 2012 reflect the business activities of cavotec sA.

cavotec sA, the parent company, is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in switzerland and listed on nAsdAQ oMX in stockholm, sweden.

these financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 19 March 2013. the report is subject to approval by the Annual general Meeting on 23 
April 2013. 

notE 2. BASIS of PREPARAtIon
the consolidated financial statements of cavotec group are prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standard (ifrs). 

Historical Cost Convention
these financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through statement of comprehensive income. 

Changes in accounting policy
there are no ifrss or ifric interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2012 that would be expected 
to have a material impact on the group.

Adoption of new standards and interpretations
the following new, revised and amended standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted in these 
consolidated financial statements. their impact on the consolidated financial statements of cavotec has not been systematically analysed yet. the expected 
effects as disclosed in the table below reflect a first assessment by group management.
 
Standard / Interpretation Effective Date Planned Application
Amendment to ifrs 7: disclosures - offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities(1) 1 Jan 2013 2013
ifrs 10 - consolidated financial statements(1) 1 Jan 2013 2013
ifrs 11 - Joint arrangements(1) 1 Jan 2013 2013
ifrs 12 - disclosure of interests in other entities(2) 1 Jan 2013 2013
ifrs 13 - fair value measurement’(1) 1 Jan 2013 2013
iAs 27 (revised) - separate financial statements(1) 1 Jan 2013 2013
iAs 28 (revised) - investments in associates and joint ventures(1) 1 Jan 2013 2013
iAs 19 (revised) - employee benefits(1) 1 Jul 2012 2013
ifrs 9 – financial instruments: classification and measurement(3) 1 Jan 2015 2015

(1) No or no significant impacts are expected on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) Mainly additional disclosures are expected in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3) The impacts on the Consolidated Financial Statements cannot be determined with sufficient reliability yet.

Critical accounting estimates
the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with ifrs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires the management to 
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. the areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

notE 3. SUmmARy of SIGnIfICAnt ACCoUntInG PolICIES 
the principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. these policies have been consistently applied to all the 
periods presented, namely, 31 december 2012 and 2011.

foREIGn CURREnCy tRAnSlAtIon
(i) Functional and presentation currency
items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the related entity operates (‘the 
functional currency’). the financial statements are presented in euros, which is the group and company’s presentation currency.

notes to the financial Statements
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(ii) Transactions and balances
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. foreign exchange 
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and 
qualifying net investment hedges. 

(iii) Foreign operations
the results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different 
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

• assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
• income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates; and
• all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign 
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, a proportionate share of such exchange differences are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income, as part of the gain or loss on sale where applicable.

goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at 
the closing rate.

ConSolIDAtIon
(i) Subsidiaries
subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more 
than one half of the voting rights. subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. they are de-consolidated from the date 
that control ceases.

the group uses the acquisition method to account for business combinations. the consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value 
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group. the consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or 
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. contingent consideration is valued based on the probability that the consideration will be paid and 
changes in the fair value are recognized in profit or loss. Acquisition-related costs are expensed. identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration 
amendments. cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. if the cost of acquisition 
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. unrealised losses are also eliminated but are 
considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.

(ii) Transactions with non-controlling interest
the group treats transaction with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the group. for purchases from non-controlling interests, the 
difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. gains or losses 
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.  

(iii) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the 
voting rights. investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. the group’s investment in 
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

the group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income. the cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the 
carrying amount of the investment. When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associates, including any other unsecured 
receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
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unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the associates. unrealised losses are 
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies by the group.

(iv) Scope of Consolidation
the consolidated financial statements include the statements at 31 december 2012 of the companies included in the scope of consolidation, which have been 
prepared in accordance of ifrs adopted by the cavotec group. below is a list of companies consolidated on a line by line basis and the respective shares held 
either directly or indirectly by cavotec sA:

name Registered office Controlled through % Group ownership
 Direct Indirect

cavotec (swiss) sA lugano - switzerland cavotec sA 100%
cavotec Australia pty ltd newcastle - Australia cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec belgium nv Antwerpen - belgium cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec brasil comercio de sistemas industriais ltda. sao paolo - brazil cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec canada holdings inc nova scotia - canada cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec canada inc toronto - canada cavotec canada holdings inc 100%
cavotec connectors Ab Malmö - sweden cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec dabico us inc costa Mesa - united states of America cavotec us holdings inc 100%
cavotec danmark As odense - denmark cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec germany gmbh dietzenbach - germany cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec engineering services ltd pune - india cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec finland oy helsinki - finland cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec france rMs sA paris - france cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec group holdings nv Woerden - the netherlands cavotec MoorMaster ltd 100%
cavotec hong Kong ltd hong Kong - china cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec iberica s.l. Alicante - spain cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec india ltd pune - india cavotec group holdings nv 70%
cavotec inet fullerton - united states of America cavotec us holdings inc 100%
cavotec international ltd stockton-on-tees - united Kingdom cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec Korea ltd ulsan - Korea cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec latin America buenos Aires - Argentina cavotec group holdings nv 90%
cavotec latin America buenos Aires - Argentina ipalco bv 10%
cavotec Micro-control As hell - norway cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec Micro-control gmbh Munich - germany cavotec germany gmbh 100%
cavotec Middle east fZe dubai - u.A.e. cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec MoorMaster ltd christchurch - new Zealand cavotec sA 100%
cavotec nederland bv Woerden - the netherlands cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec norge As drammen - norway cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec realty france sci paris - france ipalco bv 100%
cavotec realty germany bv Woerden - the netherlands ipalco bv 100%
cavotec realty norway As hell - norway ipalco bv 100%
cavotec realty usA llc statesville - unites states of America ipalco bv 100%
cavotec russia ooo Moscow - russia cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec shanghai ltd shanghai - china cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec singapore pte ltd Jurong - singapore cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec south Africa pte ltd Johannesburg - south Africa cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec specimas spA nova Milanese - italy cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec sverige Ab stockholm - sweden cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec uK ltd stockton-on-tees - united Kingdom cavotec international ltd 100%
cavotec us holdings inc delawere - united states of America cavotec sA 100%
cavotec usA inc statesville - unites states of America cavotec us holdings inc 100%
ipalco bv Woerden - the netherlands cavotec group holdings nv 100%

during the year the consolidation area had the following variations:
- the german companies, cavotec Alfo gmbh, cavotec deutschland gmbh, cavotec Meyerinck gmbh and cavotec fladung gmbh were merged into deutschland 

holding gmbh which was then renamed cavotec germany gmbh;
- cavotec realty italia spA was merged into cavotec specimas spA;
- cavotec realty holding nv was merged into ipalco bv.

on 1 January 2013, cavotec canada holdings inc. was merged into cavotec canada inc. 

notes to the financial Statements
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SEGmEnt REPoRtInG
operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. the chief operating decision-
maker (codM), who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chief executive 
officer jointly supported and assisted by the executive Management committee.

in addition, the group organizes its marketing effort under four Market units: ports & Maritime, Mining & tunnelling, Airports and general industry.

PRoPERty, PlAnt AnD EQUIPmEnt
All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items.

subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

land is not depreciated. depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using a straight line method so as to expense the cost of the assets over their 
useful lives. the rates are as follows:

Annual Percentage
industrial buildings 4
building improvements and other constructions in leasehold properties 20
plant and machinery 10 to 20
laboratory equipment and miscellaneous tools 20
furniture and office machines 20
Motor vehicles 20
computer hardware and software 33

capital work in progress is not depreciated until commissioned. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
these are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

lEASES
leases in which the group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s 
inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. each lease payment is allocated between the 
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.

the corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges are included in other long term payables. the interest element of the finance cost is charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each 
period.

the property, plant and equipment acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset’s useful life.

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. payments made under 
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

IntAnGIBlE ASSEtS
(i) Goodwill
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired business/associate 
at the date of acquisition. goodwill on acquisitions of businesses is included in intangible assets. goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments 
in associates. 

goodwill is not amortised. instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be 
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating 
to the entity sold.

goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (“cgu”) for the purpose of impairment testing. each of those cash generating units represents the group’s investment 
in each Market unit. reductions in the value of goodwill are recognised if the recoverable amount of goodwill is less than its carrying amount.
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(ii) Research and development
research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new or improved 
products) are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility and its 
costs can be measured reliably. the expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of overheads. other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. development costs 
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets at 
cost and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight line basis over its useful life, which varies from 3 to 5 years.

(iii) Patents
patents acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at acquisition date. patents are amortised on a straight line basis over the period over which 
they are valid (not exceeding 20 years) or their estimated useful life if shorter.

(iv) Marketing and customer related intangible assets
Marketing and customer related intangibles such as customer relations and other similar items acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at 
acquisition date. they are amortised on a straight line basis over the period over which they are valid or their estimated useful life if shorter.

ImPAIRmEnt of non-fInAnCIAl ASSEtS
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. intangible assets that 
have an indefinite useful life including goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment irrespective of whether any circumstances 
identifying a possible impairment have been identified. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. for the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).  

InVEntoRIES  
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. cost is determined using the weighted average cost method. the cost of finished goods and 
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads which are attributed based on normal operating 
capacity. net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated variable 
costs necessary to make the sale. provisions are made for inventories with a lower market value or which are slow-moving. if it becomes apparent that such 
inventory can be reused, provisions are reversed with inventory being revalued up to the lower of its net realizable value or original cost. unsalable inventory is 
fully written off.

fInAnCIAl InStRUmEntS
Recognition and derecognition
financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. purchases and sales of financial 
assets are accounted for at trade date, which is the day when the group contractually commits to acquire or dispose of the assets. trade receivables are recognized 
on issuance of invoices. liabilities are recognized when the other party has performed and there is a contractual obligation to pay. 

derecognition (fully or partially) of a financial asset occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial instruments expire or are transferred and 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been removed from the group. the group derecognizes (fully or partially) a financial liability when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or otherwise expires. 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measurement and classification
financial instruments are, at initial recognition, measured at fair value with addition or deduction of transaction costs in the case of a financial asset or a financial 
liability not measured at fair value through statement of comprehensive income. financial instruments, upon initial recognition, are classified in accordance with the 
categories in iAs 39 based on the purpose of the acquisition of the instrument. the financial instruments are classified as follows:

• financial instruments are designated at fair value through statement of comprehensive income if the group manages such investments and makes purchase 
and sale decisions based on their fair value. they are included in “current or non-current financial assets”. financial instruments at fair value through profit and 
loss are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in profit and loss.

• loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. they arise when 
the group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. loans and receivables are included in “trade 
receivables”, “other current & non-current receivables”, and “non-current financial assets” in the balance sheet. trade receivables are recognised initially at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for doubtful debts. collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an on-going basis. debts 
which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence that the company may not be 
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables, and on a prudent basis, on past due accounts. the amount of the provision is the 

notes to the financial Statements

consolidAted finAnciAl stAteMents

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  consolidated financial statements 



67

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and realisable value. the amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. the 
fair value of loans and receivables is the same as the carrying amount since they are not discounted given the short expected time to payment.

• held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the group has the positive intention 
and ability to hold to maturity. held to maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any 
impairment losses.

• Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale. subsequent to initial recognition, they are 
measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses which are recognized in profit and loss. 
When an investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss.

• derivative instruments are measured at fair value. for derivatives which are not part of hedge accounting (classified as financial assets or liabilities held for 
trading), changes in fair value are reported as operating or financial income or expense based on the purpose of the use of the derivatives and whether 
the instruments relate to operational or financial items. fair value changes on derivatives are recognized in statement of comprehensive income unless the 
derivatives are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow or net investment hedges (see section below about hedge accounting).

Hedge accounting
in order to qualify for hedge accounting according to iAs 39, the hedging relationship must be designated, the hedge expected to be highly effective and the 
hedge relationship documented. the group assesses, evaluates and documents effectiveness both at hedge inception and on an on-going basis. the method of 
recognizing a gain or loss resulting from hedging instruments is dependent on the type of hedge relationship, i.e. which type of risk exposure that is secured by 
the hedging instrument. 

changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit and loss, together with any changes in the fair 
value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. these changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability are recognized in profit 
and loss to offset the effect of gain or loss on the hedging instrument. based on decisions taken in the financial risk Management committee, transaction exposure 
can be hedged using various derivative instruments. 

changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent that 
the hedge is effective and the accumulated changes in fair value are recognized as a separate component in equity. to the extent that the hedge is ineffective, 
changes in fair value are recognized in profit and loss. if the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated 
or exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity via other comprehensive income 
remains there until the forecast transaction occurs. When the hedged item is a non-financial asset, the amount recognized in equity via other comprehensive 
income is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it is recognized. in other cases, the amount recognized in equity via other comprehensive income 
is transferred to profit and loss in the same period that the hedged item affects profit and loss.

gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in other comprehensive income. gain or loss relating to the 
ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit and loss. gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are included in profit and loss on 
disposal of foreign operations.

Impairment of financial assets
financial assets, except for such assets classified at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence that they are impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect 
of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value. if the reasons for write-down should cease to exist, the value of the asset 
is restored up to the value it would have if no impairment had been recognised.

CASh AnD CASh EQUIVAlEntS
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and other short term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and 
bank overdrafts.

BoRRowInGS
borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings 
using the effective interest method. 

fees paid on the establishment of an undrawn loan facility, are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the facility. borrowings 
are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of liabilities for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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BoRRowInG CoStS
borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale. other borrowing costs are expensed.  

PRoVISIonS
provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. the amount recognized is the best estimate of the cost required to settle the 
present obligation at the balance sheet date. if the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

provisions for restructuring cover expenses that arise directly from restructuring measures, are necessary for restructuring and are not related to future business operations. 
such expenses include severance payments to employees and compensation payments in respect of rented property that can no longer be used. restructuring measures 
may include the sale or termination of business units, site closures, relocations of business activities or fundamental reorganizations of business units. the respective provisions 
are established when a detailed restructuring plan has been drawn up, resolved upon by the responsible decision-making level of management and communicated to the 
employees and / or their representatives. 

provisions for warranties are recognised at the time the products are sold based on the estimated cost using historical data for level of repairs and replacements.

provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected economic benefits to be derived from a contract are lower than the cost of meeting the 
obligations under the contract. the provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net 
cost of continuing with the contract.

REVEnUE RECoGnItIon
revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services, excluding value added taxes, goods and service 
tax (gst), rebates and discounts. revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods
sales of goods are recognised when the entity has shipped a product to the customer. 

(ii) Sales of services
sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on 
the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

(iii) Long term contracts
contract revenues and related costs from contracts involving complete project solutions achieved through system integration are recognized on the percentage 
of completion method when the outcome of the contract can be measured reliably. completion is generally measured by reference to the cost incurred to date 
as a percentage of the estimated total project costs. the milestone output method is applied when the nature of the individual projects indicates that a milestone 
method is the most applicable measure of progress.

billings that exceed revenues recognized under percentage of completion are recorded as advances from customers. revenues recognized under percentage of 
completion method that exceed billings are booked as unbilled receivables. 

recognized revenues and profits are subject to revisions during the project life span in the event that the assumptions regarding the overall project outcome are 
revised. the cumulative impact of a revision in estimates is recorded in the period when such revisions become known and measurable. losses on projects are 
recognized immediately when known and measurable. 

claims for extra work or change in scope of work may be included in contract revenues when collection is highly probable.

VAlUE ADDED tAx (VAt) AnD GooDS AnD SERVICES tAx (GSt) 
the statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of vAt or gst. All items in the balance sheet are also 
stated net of vAt or gst, with the exception of receivables and payables, which include vAt or gst invoiced.

EmPloyEE BEnEfItS
liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the 
reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. 

(i) Pension obligations
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and the group has no legal or constructive 
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obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and 
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

group companies operate pension schemes via the employee benefits foundation of cavotec (swiss) sA, lugano and cavotec sA, lugano. the participating 
employer cavotec (swiss) sA, lugano and cavotec sA, lugano are affiliated with the swiss life collective bvg foundation based in Zurich. All benefits in 
accordance with the regulations are reinsured in their entirety with swiss life ltd within the framework of the corresponding contract and determined by actuarial 
calculations for the first time as of 31 december 2011. these schemes are defined benefit plans due to the fact that cavotec can be requested to pay restructuring 
contributions in the case of a shortfall. Although these schemes are defined benefit plans, defined contribution accounting was applied to the schemes in prior years 
due to materiality reasons. starting as of 31 december 2011 the accounting was changed to defined benefit accounting.

typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such 
as age, years of service and compensation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they arise.

the liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. the defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds 
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

(ii) Share-based payments
the group has share-based incentive programs, which have been offered annually to certain employees based on position and performance, consisting of a 
performance component and a retention component. the accumulated expense recognized equals the expected cash amount to be paid at settlement (or liability 
amount transferred to equity when employees have a choice and choose to settle in shares).

DIVIDEnDS
provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance sheet date. dividend distribution 
to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Annual 
general Meeting.

tREASURy ShARES
treasury shares are deducted from consolidated equity at the acquisition value. differences between this amount and the amount received for disposing of treasury 
shares are recorded in consolidated retained earnings.

InComE tAx 
the income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current years taxable income based on the national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted 
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are 
settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. the relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of 
deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the 
initial recognition of an asset or a liability. no deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, 
other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit and loss.

deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries and 
associates where the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances 
relate to the same taxation authority. current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.
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non-oPERAtInG CoStS 
non-operating costs were incurred in relation to the change of the listing place from new Zealand to sweden. those costs were charged directly to the statement 
of comprehensive income account.

notE 4. CRItICAl ACCoUntInG EStImAtES AnD jUDGmEntS
estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

the company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. the resulting accounting estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. critical 
accounting policies and estimates in the period relate to trade receivables, inventory and provisions. As of the balance sheet dates the company has no other 
significant estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities within the foreseeable future.

DEfERRED tAxES
deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes of assets and liabilities and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes and for tax loss carry-forwards. the group records valuation allowances for deferred tax assets based upon management’s 
estimates of future taxable profit in different tax jurisdictions. the actual results may differ from these estimates, due to change in the business climate and change 
in tax legislation. see notes 20 and 24 for additional information.

lEGAl PRoCEEDInGS
the group recognizes a liability when it has an obligation from a past event involving the transfer of economic benefits and when a reasonable estimate can be 
made of what the transfer might be. the group reviews outstanding legal cases regularly in order to assess the need for provisions in the financial statements. 
these reviews consider the factors of the specific case by internal legal counsel and through the use of outside legal counsel and advisors when necessary. to 
the extent that management’s assessment of the factors considered are not reflected in subsequent developments, the financial statements could be affected.

GooDwIll ImPAIRmEnt tESt
the group allocates the goodwill to the cash-generating units (cgu’s) identified according to the Market units.

 
 EUR 000’s

net book value 
as of 31/12/2011

translation 
differences and other

Acquisitions 
and dispositions

Impairment net book value 
as of 31/12/2012

ports & Maritime  23,286     75  -       -       23,361    
Airports   31,657         (369)  -       -       31,288    
Mining & tunnelling 530  -  -       -      530
general industry  6,457     11  -       -       6,468    
total  61,930     (283)  -       -       61,647    

for the purpose of estimating the value in use of the Market units, cash flows were projected for the next five years based on past experiences, actual operating 
results and management’s best estimate about future developments and market assumptions.

the value in use is mainly driven by the terminal value, which is particularly sensitive to changes in the assumptions on the terminal value growth rate and discount 
rate. terminal value growth rates are related to industry specific trends with the support of external macroeconomic sources of data and an assessment as to the 
ability of the company to take advantage of these markets taking into account orders received, commercial negotiations currently in place and future expectations.

the following table presents the key assumptions used to determine the value in use for impairment test purposes:
 2012 terminal value growth rate Pre-tax weighted average cost of capital
ports & Maritime 2.0% 9.0%
Airports 2.0% 9.0%
Mining & tunnelling 1.0% 9.0%
general industry 1.5% 9.0%

based on the estimated cash flows these Market units are expected to generate from their businesses, discounted back to their present value using the above 
mentioned discount rate, the management concluded that goodwill allocated to these Market units remained recoverable at 31 december 2012. Management 
believes that reasonable changes in key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts of all segments will not result in impairment.

in its review of the carrying amounts of goodwill of year-end 2012, management specifically considered the goodwill allocated to the Airports Market unit. the 
sensitivity analysis shows that a reduction in gross margin of 4.2% or a rise of the discount rate to 14.1% would remove the remaining headroom.
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notE 5. BUSInESS ACQUISItIonS
Combibox
on 3 september 2012 the group acquired through its fully owned subsidiary cavotec germany gmbh the acquisition of aircraft ground support equipment (gse) 
manufacturer combibox systems scandinavia Ab based in sweden for a cash consideration of seK 19 million (eur 2.3 million), of which seK 10 million (eur 
1.2 million) was paid at the acquisition time. seK 3 million (eur 0.4 million) of residual amount will be paid in 2013 and the balance in 2014 and 2015. the 
transaction costs amounted to eur 53 thousands.

the acquired business contributed eur 38 thousands in total revenues and eur 239 thousands in operating loss from the date of acquisition to 31 december 2012, 
and eur 373 thousands to the order book.

details of the net assets acquired are as follows:
 EUR 000’s
purchase consideration 2,258

Marketing and customer related intangible assets 2,200
inventories 58

notE 6. lonG tERm ContRACtS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
revenues recognized  578  16,342 
cost incurred and recognized (2,529)  (14,295)
progress billings on account (598) -
earning in excess of billings -  3,230

At 31 december, 2012 all costs sustained have been recognized as an expense. retentions totalling eur 842 thousands has been included in the other non-
current receivables.

notE 7. othER InComE
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
carriage, insurance and freight  3,617  2,237 
commissions and royalties  141  281 
other miscellaneous income  1,052  580 
total  4,810  3,098 

other income increased by eur 1,712 thousands mainly due to the increase in carriage, insurance and freight of eur 1,380 thousands following the increase 
business volume in the year.   

notE 8. EmPloyEE BEnEfIt CoStS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
salaries and wages  (46,474)  (38,534)
social security contributions  (6,810)  (6,076)
other employee benefits  (5,448)  (4,768)
total  (58,732)  (49,378)

the employee benefit costs are based on an average workforce of 891 full time equivalents (2011: 796). this variance is mainly due to the expansion of the 
business in terms of sales and therefore of production and also to the acquisition of inet which contributed only for 4,5 months in 2011.

the increase in the average number of employees is mainly allocated to the America and europe operating segments.
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notE 9. oPERAtInG ExPEnSES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
transportation expenses  (2,819)  (3,029)
external services  (8,998)  (8,414)
travelling expenses  (4,759)  (4,177)
general expenses  (8,830)  (9,233)
rent and leasing  (4,448)  (3,771)
credit losses  (3,044)  (498)
Warranty costs  (1,345)  (1,088)
total  (34,243)  (30,210)

operating expenses increased at a slower pace than revenues, reflecting the benefits of productivity gains and good cost management across all divisions.

notE 10. non-RECURRInG ItEmS

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
restructuring costs  1,706  572 
Acquisition costs 53  299 
impairment losses  -  619 
litigation costs  1,810  - 
total operating costs  3,569  1,490 
non-operating costs  -  2,320 
reduction of deferred tax assets  -  1,147 
total non-recurring items  3,569  4,957 

the litigation costs are the costs sustained from the on-going litigation with Mike colaco. restructuring costs are the costs incurred due to the actions taken in 
germany to streamline production capacity and tailor our product range to reflect shifts in some markets. the total of eur 3,569 thousands (2011: 1,490) is 
included in operating expenses.

notE 11. nEt fInAnCE CoStS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
interest income  60  76 
interest expenses  (1,008)  (1,379)
change of derivatives fair value  (14)  50 
Amortization of issuance costs  (301)  (320)
Interest expenses - net  (1,263)  (1,573)

    
Currency exchange difference - net  (477)  1,514 

    
total  (1,741)  (59)

notE 12. InComE tAxES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
current tax  (7,470)  (5,043)
deferred tax  3,425  582 
total  (4,045)  (4,461)

the tax on the groups profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the 
consolidated entities as follows: 

tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable to profits in the respective countries (7,409)  (3,953)
tax effect of non-taxable income included in profit before tax 2,912  210 
tax on non-deductible expenses or not related to income (146)  756 
tax losses not valued (1,067)  (2,056)
utilization of previously unrecognized dtA 518 -
effects of tax losses / credits utilized 300 -
losses carried forward with dtA (2,578)  - 
total (7,470)  (5,043)
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notE 13. tRADE RECEIVABlES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
trade receivables  54,369  43,533 
provision for doubtful debts  (3,786)  (921)
trade receivables, net  50,583  42,612 

the movement on the provision for doubtful debts is summarised below:

opening balance  (921)  (608)
provision recorded in the year  (3,011)  (410)
provision used in the year  67  136 
currency exchange difference  79  (39)
Closing balance  (3,786)  (921)

notE 14. tAx ASSEtS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
tax assets  322  92 
vAt recoverable  208  462 
total  530  554 

notE 15. othER CURREnt RECEIVABlES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
short term investments  5  3 
deposits  1,075  867 
prepayments  1,721  1,336 
other receivables  795  4,285 
total  3,596  6,491 

notE 16. InVEntoRIES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
raw materials  4,180  3,972 
Work in progress  5,891  940 
finished goods  31,649  25,704 
provision for slow moving inventories  (2,159)  (1,511)
total  39,561  29,105 

the movements on the provision for slow moving inventories are summarised below:
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011

opening balance  (1,511)  (1,120)
provision used during the year  25  2 
provision recorded in the year  (677)  (365)
currency exchange difference  3  (28)
Closing balance  (2,158)  (1,511)
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notE 17. PRoPERty, PlAnt AnD EQUIPmEnt
  
 EUR 000’s

land & 
buildings

 Plant &
equipment

fixtures &
fittings

total

year ended 31 December 2011
opening net book value  15,719  3,768  773  20,260 
Additions  2,138  2,396  2,475  7,009 
disposals  (0)  (66)  (36)  (102)
depreciation  (663)  (1,647)  (549)  (2,859)
currency exchange differences  160  51  63  274 
net book amount  17,354  4,503  2,725  24,582 

At 31 December 2011  
cost  19,658  16,638  5,143  41,439 
Accumulated depreciation  (2,304)  (12,135)  (2,418)  (16,857)
net book amount  17,354  4,503  2,725  24,582 

year ended 31 December 2012
opening net book value  17,354  4,503  2,725  24,582 
Additions  4,402  2,390  230  7,022 
disposals -  (160) -  (160)
depreciation  (692)  (1,710)  (565)  (2,967)
currency exchange differences  295  4  64  363 
Closing net book value  21,359  5,027  2,454  28,840 

At 31 December 2012  
cost  24,361  18,128  5,450  47,938 
Accumulated depreciation  (3,002)  (13,099)  (2,998)  (19,098)
net book amount  21,359  5,027  2,454  28,840 

the increase is mainly related to the acquisition of the new cavotec fladung division premises in germany and the ordinary replacement of the group’s assets.

notE 18. IntAnGIBlE ASSEtS

 EUR 000’s
 Goodwill  Patents & 

trademarks  
R&D 

and other
 total 

year ended 31 December 2011
opening net book value  44,784  4,330  1,625  50,739 
Additions  15,212  301  59  15,572 
disposals  - -  (238)  (238)
Amortisation  -  (471)  (557)  (1,029)
impairment  -  -  (619)  (619)
currency exchange differences  1,934  15  4  1,952 
net book amount  61,930  4,175  274  66,379 

At 31 December 2011
cost  61,930  6,887  1,293  70,109 
Accumulated amortisation  -  (2,712)  (1,019)  (3,731)
net book amount  61,930  4,175  274  66,379 

year ended 31 December 2012
opening net book value  61,930  4,175  274  66,379 
Additions  -  182  2,217  2,399 
disposals  - -  (28)  (28)
Amortisation  -  (468)  (323)  (791)
currency exchange differences  (284)  23  11  (250)
Closing net book value  61,646  3,912  2,151  67,709 

At 31 December 2012
cost  61,646  7,101  3,535  72,282 
Accumulated amortisation  -  (3,189)  (1,384)  (4,573)
net book amount  61,646  3,912  2,151  67,709 

the increase of r&d and other intangibles is due to the acquisition of ground support equipment manufactured combibox detailed in note 5.
the impairment of the goodwill balance has been considered in note 4.
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notE 19. non-CURREnt fInAnCIAl ASSEtS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
financial receivables  113  214 
financial assets at fair value  40  40 
total  153  254 

the financial receivables include interest bearing loans of which eur 69 thousands is due from related parties. 

notE 20. DEfERRED tAx ASSEtS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months  3,053  386 
deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months  4,041  2,380 
Closing balance  7,094  2,766 

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
provision for warranty, inventory and doubtful accounts 1,177  512 
losses carried forward 3,063  736 
depreciation and amortization 295  324 
unrealized exchange differences -  141 
Accrued expenses not currently deductible 666  634 
Mark-to-market on derivatives 24  20 
others 1,869  399 
total 7,094  2,766 

the deferred tax assets arose as a consequence of the recognition of timing differences on provisions relative to doubtful accounts, slow moving inventories 
and warranties, which are not tax deductible currently and become deductible for tax purposes when utilized, as well as to tax losses generated by some group 
companies.

notE 21. loAnS AnD BoRRowInGS
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
bank overdrafts  (1,829)  - 
credit facility current portion  (2,000)  (2,000)
other current financial liabilities  (911)  (2,277)
credit facility non-current portion  (25,500)  (30,000)
other non-current financial liabilities  (5,086)  (3,164)
unamortized issuance costs  498  777 
total  (34,828)  (36,664)

during the year, the group reimbursed eur 4,500 thousands of the syndicated credit facility.

negative mark-to-market on derivatives for eur 86 thousands is included in other non-current liabilities. financial leasing liabilities for eur 56 thousands are 
included in other current liabilities and eur 128 thousands in other non-current liabilities.

the carrying amount of overdrafts, short term and long term debt is assumed to approximate the fair value.

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
bank overdrafts 1.67% -
short term debt 2.50% 2.77%
long term debt 1.97% 2.61%
Interest bearing liabilities 2.00% 2.63%

the average cost of the interest bearing liabilities at the end of 2012 was lower compared to the previous year because of the reduced base rate and due to a 
larger percentage of floating rate debt.

notE 22. tRADE PAyABlES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
trade payables  (28,559)  (28,096)
Advances from customers  (8,414)  (5,853)
total  (36,973)  (33,949)
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notE 23. othER CURREnt lIABIlItIES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
tax and social security  (5,268)  (3,614)
employee entitlements  (8,074)  (5,482)
Accrued expenses and other  (6,377)  (6,288)
total  (19,719)  (15,383)

notE 24. DEfERRED tAx lIABIlItIES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
depreciation and amortization (3,048)  (2,111)
unrealized exchange differences (8)  (165)
Actuarial pension scheme (21)  (32)
local tax requirements (1,118)  (912)
financial leasing (2)  (7)
others (148)  (184)
total (4,345)  (3,410)

notE 25. PRoVISIon foR RISkS AnD ChARGES 
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
provision for pension  (1,909)  (1,716)
provision for warranty  (2,227)  (1,668)
provision for litigation  (189)  - 
provision for restructuring  (940)  - 
provision for taxation  (478)  (486)
other provision  (1,402) - 
total  (7,146)  (3,871)

 EUR 000’s 2011 Recorded Used other 2012
provision for pension  (1,716)  (242)  40  9  (1,909)
provision for warranty  (1,668)  (666)  93  13  (2,228)
provision for litigation  -  (195)  -  5  (190)
provision for restructuring  -  (940)  -  -  (940)
provision for taxation  (486)  -  -  9  (477)
other provision -  (1,440) -  38  (1,402)
total  (3,870)  (3,483)  133  74  (7,146)

provision for pension refers to compensation payable to employees upon termination of employment for any reason. A major part of this provision, in the normal 
course of events, is long term in nature.

provision for warranty represents the estimated costs to repair or replace defect products and is based on historical experience.

provision for litigation is the estimated legal costs to be sustained in conjunction with on-going litigation.

provision for restructuring includes severance payments and other expenses related to the actions taken in germany to streamline production capacity and tailor 
our product range to reflect shifts in some markets. 

other provision includes also provisions for onerous contracts.

the majority of the provisions are estimated to be non current.

notes to the financial Statements
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notE 26. PEnSIon PlAn
the group operates defined benefit pension plans in switzerland based on employee pensionable remuneration. the amount recognized in the balance sheet 
is as follows:
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
present value of defined benefit obligation 1,106 854
fair value of plan assets 766 553
deficit of funded plans 340 301
present value of unfunded obligations - -
unrecognised past service cost - -
liability in the balance sheet 340 301

Actuarial losses recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income in the period are eur 31 thousands, resulting from an eur 39 thousands increase 
of the liabilities net of deferred tax assets of eur 8 thousands.

the movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows: 
 EUR 000’s

At 1 january 2012 (854)
service cost employer (133)
ordinary contributions paid by employees (101)
interest cost (19)
benefits paid 29
Actuarial (gains) / losses (22)
exchange differences (6)
At 31 December 2012  (1,106)

the movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows:  
 EUR 000’s

At 1 january 2012 553
expected return on assets 14
ordinary contributions paid by employer 101
ordinary contributions paid by employees 101
interest cost -
benefits paid (29)
Actuarial gains / (losses) 22
exchange differences 4
At 31 December 2012 766

the amounts recognised in the income statements are as follows: 

service cost employer 133
interest cost 19
expected return on assets (14)
total 2012 138

the principal actuarial assumptions were as follows: 
2012 2011

discount rate 1.75% 2.25%
inflation rate 1.00% 1.00%
interest rate on the savings account 1.75% 2.25%
long term rate of return on plan assets 2.50% 2.50%
future salary increase 1.50% 1.50%
social security increase 1.00% 1.00%
future pension increases 0.00% 0.00%
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Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience.
2012 2011

Mortality rates bvg 2010 bvg 2010
disability rates bvg 2010 bvg 2010
turnover rates bvg 2010 bvg 2010
early retirement age 100% M65/f64 none M65/f64
capital option 40% 40%

plan assets are comprised as follows:
2012 2011

fixed-interest, cash and cash equivalents, time deposits 78.38% 77.10%
Mortgages and other claims on par value 7.00% 7.02%
equities and units in investment funds 1.02% 1.26%
private equity and hedge funds 0.48% 0.58%
investment in participations and associated companies 0.81% 0.84%
real estate 11.26% 11.38%
other investments 1.05% 1.82%
total 100% 100%

the expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy.

notE 27. ShARE CAPItAl
the tables below set forth the changes occurred in the share capital of the group.
 EUR 000’s Date number of shares Share capital 

Balance at 1 january 2011 63,632,700 (42,578)
Acquisition of inet 17/08/2011  71,332,700 (55,022)
scheme of Arrangement 03/10/2011 71,397,220 (90,553)
Balance at 31 December 2011 71,397,220 (90,553)

Balance at 1 january 2012  71,397,220  (90,553)
reduction of nominal value -  1,167 
Balance at 31 December 2012  71,397,220  (89,386)

the AgM held on 4 May, 2012 approved a reduction of the nominal value of the registered shares from chf 1.55 to 1.53. the nominal value reduction was 
used for the repayment to the shareholders. 

the 2012 AgM approved the creation of a contingent share capital of 713,972 shares, in connection with employees’ participation to the 2012 long term incen-
tive plan (ltip), and the creation of the authorized share capital of 14,279,444 shares by not later than 4 May 2014. 

the share capital of cavotec sA as of 31 december 2012 is divided into 71,397,220 shares.

notE 28. othER RESERVES
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
currency translation reserves  (2,896)  (2,046)
share premium reserve  (1,751)  (1,751)
own shares reserve  80  81 
Actuarial reserve  275  244 
total  (4,292)  (3,472)

the currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into 
euro. the value of the currency reserve increased from eur 2,046 thousands to eur 2,896 thousands due to the general depreciation of the eur against the 
currencies of the countries where the group operates.

the own shares reserve was created in 2011 when cavotec sA bought back its shares from the former parent company cavotec Msl.

notes to the financial Statements
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notE 29. EARnInGS PER ShARE
both the basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated using the net results attributable to shareholders of cavotec sA as the numerator.

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011

profit for the year  12,192  5,844 

Attributable to:
equity holders of the group  12,319  5,948 
non-controlling interest  (127)  (104)
total  12,192  5,844 

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding  71,332,700  66,501,741 

basic and diluted earnings per share attributed to the equity holders of the group  0.173  0.089 

there are no instruments in place to dilute the current shares. therefore basic and diluted shares are the same.

notE 30. SEGmEnt InfoRmAtIon
operating segments have been determined on the basis of the group management structure in place and on the management information and reports received 
and used by the codM to make strategic and management decisions.

the group organisation is based on geographic regions and each region is headed by a regional Manager. the principal regional groupings which constitute 
operating segments are:

Americas: this region includes the usA, canada, Mexico, central and south America 
europe & Africa: this region includes all of europe, including russia, and Africa
Middle east & india: this region includes egypt, gulf states, india, lebanon, oman, saudi Arabia, turkey, and the united Arab emirates 
far east: this region includes china, hong Kong, Japan and south Korea
Australasia and south east Asia: this region includes south east Asia including singapore, Australia and new Zealand
hQ: this segment includes the parent, the sub-holdings and the service companies

While the primary focus of the codM in managing the business is directed at geographic regions, attention is also directed at the level of product penetration and 
third party revenues generated in the various regions for the various product groupings. third party revenues, by product grouping, for each operating segment 
are summarised later in this note.

information by operating segment for the year ended 31 december, 2012 for each reportable segment is summarised below:
 year ended 31 December, 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

total

revenue from sales of goods  40,442  168,912  24,215  30,477  37,481 -  (81,455)  220,072 
other income  663  6,625  726  164  571  1,305  (5,243)  4,810 
operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortisation  (42,278)  (156,162)  (24,844)  (27,720)  (35,201)  (1,693)  84,751  (203,147)
Gross operating Result  (1,173)  19,375  97  2,921  2,851  (388)  (1,947)  21,736 

information by operating segment for the year ended 31 december, 2011 for each reportable segment is summarised below:
 year ended 31 December, 2011
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

total

revenue from sales of goods  26,458  134,679  34,289  27,020  30,641  -  (63,118)  189,969 
other income  412  5,572  174  676  160  679  (4,575)  3,098 
operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortisation  (24,840)  (132,416)  (32,829)  (24,945)  (26,848)  (1,212)  67,214  (175,876)
Gross operating Result  2,030  7,835  1,634  2,751  3,953  (533)  (479)  17,191 

the codM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on adjusted gross operating result. this measurement basis excludes the effects of non-
recurring expenditure from operating segments such as restructuring costs, legal expenses and goodwill impairments when the impairment is the result of an 
isolated non-recurring event.    
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A reconciliation of adjusted gross operating result to profit before income tax is provided as follows:

 EUR 000’s
year ended 

31 December 2012
year ended 

31 December 2011
gross operating result for reportable segments  23,684  17,669 
inter-group elimination  (1,947)  (479)
depreciation  (2,968)  (2,859)
Amortisation  (791)  (1,029)
impairment  -  (619)
non-operating costs  -  (2,320)
financial costs - net  (1,741)  (59)
Profit before income tax  16,237  10,305 

 Assets at 31 December 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

total

total current assets  20,267  72,696  20,623  18,090  24,723  23,734  (75,550)  104,583 
intangible assets  24,925  17,803  -    17  24,964  -    -    67,709 
total non-current assets  5,823  24,878  2,953  945  1,407  10,058  (7,631)  38,433 
total assets  51,015  115,377  23,576  19,052  51,094  33,792  (83,181)  210,725 

 Assets at 31 December 2011
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

total

total current assets  15,757  60,283  17,145  15,376  32,468  26,455  (75,771)  91,713 
intangible assets  25,358  15,566  -  -  25,278  177  -  66,379 
total non-current assets  3,706  20,314  5,366  731  739  13,376  (12,583)  31,649 
total assets  44,821  96,163  22,511  16,107  58,485  40,008  (88,355)  189,741 

reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows:

 EUR 000’s
year ended 

31 December 2012
year ended 

31 December 2011
segment assets for reportable segments  293,906  278,096 
inter-group elimination  (83,181)  (88,355)
total assets  210,725  189,741 

the amounts provided to the codM with respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial statements. these liabilities are 
allocated based on the operations of the segment. the group’s interest-bearing liabilities are not considered to be segment liabilities but rather are managed by 
the treasury function.

 liabilities at 31 December 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

total

total current liabilities  (40,474)  (55,744)  (11,684)  (10,234)  (6,522)  (6,240)  69,466  (61,432)
total non-current liabilities  (3,959)  (19,713)  (901)  (756)  (1,239)  (25,479)  9,583  (42,464)
total liabilities  (44,433)  (75,457)  (12,585)  (10,990)  (7,761)  (31,719)  79,049  (103,896)

 liabilities at 31 December 2011
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

total

total current liabilities  (32,912)  (54,346)  (11,163)  (7,790)  (12,847)  (6,416)  71,864  (53,610)
total non-current liabilities  (2,947)  (17,513)  (807)  (742)  (1,294)  (29,621)  11,665  (41,259)
total liabilities  (35,859)  (71,859)  (11,970)  (8,532)  (14,141)  (36,037)  83,529  (94,869)

reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as follows:

 EUR 000’s
year ended 

31 December 2012
year ended 

31 December 2011
segment liabilities for reportable segments  (182,945)  (178,397)
inter-group elimination  79,049  83,529 
total liabilities  (103,896)  (94,869)

notes to the financial Statements
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third party revenues for each operating segment analysed by significant product grouping is summarised below:
 year ended 31 December 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

total

ports & Maritime  10,920  31,497  6,275  16,965  15,563  81,220 
Airports  19,485  22,466  11,229  3,961  551  57,692 
Mining & tunnelling  2,175  21,570  65  4,033  8,675  36,518 
general industry  4,734  25,661  6,636  4,243  3,368  44,642 
total  37,314  101,194  24,205  29,202  28,157  220,072 

 year ended 31 December 2011
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

total

ports & Maritime  6,442  22,254  7,985  13,437  12,322  62,441 
Airports  11,654  15,614  17,473  4,569  678  49,988 
Mining & tunnelling  1,952  18,741  107  3,069  6,477  30,346 
general industry  5,468  24,503  8,724  5,097  3,402  47,194 
total  25,516  81,112  34,289  26,172  22,879  189,969 

the consolidated revenues of the group are generated principally outside of switzerland, where the company is domiciled, and operations in switzerland are 
relatively insignificant. due to the nature of the business, no single country represents a significant percentage of group revenues.

notE 31. RElAtED PARty DISCloSURE 
cavotec sA is the legal parent of the group. details of cavotec sA subsidiaries and associates can be found in note 3.

the group’s key management personnel comprises the chief executive officer and the members of executive Management committee (eMc), their total remu-
neration including salary and other short term benefits amounted to a total of eur 4,199 thousands (2011: 3,672 thousands). please refer to page 94 for the 
remuneration of the board members and page 95 for the description of the long-term incentive plan. 

 year ended 31 December 2012

 EUR 000’s
Short-term employee 

benefits
Post-employment 

benefits
other long-term benefits Share-based payment total

chief executive officer 587 25 - - 612

executive Management 3,411 176 - - 3,587

total remuneration 3,998 201 - - 4,199

 year ended 31 December 2011

 EUR 000’s
Short-term employee 

benefits
Post-employment 

benefits
other long-term benefits Share-based payment total

chief executive officer 582 64 - - 646

executive Management 2,882 144 - - 3,026

total remuneration 3,464 208 - - 3,672

the following table summarizes the group’s transactions with its related parties:
 EUR 000’s  Revenues Costs
 Company  Country  Receivables  Payables  Guarantees  Goods 

and services 
 others  Goods 

and services 
 others 

port equipment Manufacturing 
Association (peMA)

 belgium - - - - - - (2)

radela Ab  sweden - - - - - (10) -
soliden sagl switzerland - - - - - (168) -
swedish swiss chamber of 
commerce

switzerland - - - - - - (8)

vr group oy                     finland - - - 60 -  - -
total - -  -   60  -    (178)  (10)

 At 31 december, 2012 the company had interest bearing loans outstanding to managers and employees totalling eur 69 thousands (2011: 129 thousands). 

  consolidated financial statements  |  Cavotec Annual Report 2012 



82

notE 32. REmUnERAtIon of AUDItoRS
during the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the entity, its related practices and non-related audit firms.

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011

Audit services
pricewaterhousecoopers  631  420 
other auditor firms  140  202 
total  771  622 

other assurance services:

taxation
pricewaterhousecoopers  91  49 
other auditor firms  4  22 
total  95  71 

other assurance services*
pricewaterhousecoopers  126  391 
other auditor firms  4  5 
total  130  395 

total  225  467 

* other assurance services include legal services, transfer pricing and eu vAt consultancy fees.

notE 33. lEGAl RISkS
As a global company with a diverse business portfolio, the cavotec group is exposed to numerous legal risks, particularly in the areas of product liability, competi-
tion and tax assessments. 

the outcome of any current or future proceedings cannot be predicted. it is therefore possible that legal or regulatory judgments or future settlements could give 
rise to expenses that are not covered, or not fully covered, by insurers’ compensation payments and could significantly affect our revenues and earnings.
legal proceedings currently considered to involve material risks are outlined below. 

Mike Colaco litigation
during the year, following the commencement of an internal investigation of certain practices at cavotec‘s us-based inet operations, Mike colaco, former owner 
of inet Airport systems inc. was suspended from all management positions in cavotec inet inc. and other us Affiliates of the cavotec group on 2 september 
2012. colaco subsequently filed a lawsuit against cavotec on 1 october 2012. cavotec denies any wrongdoing and has filed a countersuit against colaco and 
others on 26 october 2012. the lawsuit is moving forward and discovery is currently underway. the trial is expected to start on 4 november 2013. the assess-
ment of the board of directors is that the claims made by colaco are without substantial basis or foundation and are not likely to result in any material financial 
exposure to cavotec, which has not already been provided for in the accounts. As the litigation is on-going the group withholds from further comment at this time.

Meyerinck litigation
At the beginning of January 2013, several former Meyerinck employees sued the company seeking damages after the termination of their contract; few cases 
have already been resolved. the management is confident that the provision covers the probable outcome of the on-going litigation.

notE 34. ContInGEnCIES 
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
bonds  11,199  7,004 
financial guarantees  1,385  916 
other guarantees  1,359  341 
total 13,943  8,261 

the items listed under contingencies are mainly performance bonds to customers in the Australia, Middle east, russia and usA. 

notes to the financial Statements
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notE 35. CommItmEntS  
the following details commitments associated with cavotec sA & subsidiaries.

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011

Rental commitments
Within one year  2,944  2,669 
later than one, not later than two years  1,712  2,303 
later than two, not later than five years  2,482  2,152 
later than five years  180  301 
total  7,318  7,425 

the group leases various properties under non-cancellable lease agreements. these lease terms are generally between one and six years.

operating lease commitments
Within one year  805  812 
later than one, not later than two years  609  738 
later than two, not later than five years  355  892 
later than five years  6  - 
total  1,775  2,442 

Capital commitments
Within one year  8  3,942 
later than one, not later than two years  1  3 
total commitments  9  3,945 

notE 36. SECURItIES AnD CollAtERAlS
real estate related loans amounting to eur 5,608 thousands at 31 december, 2012 (2011: 3,307) are secured by mortgages on land and buildings in italy, 
germany, norway, sweden and france. the increase of the year is due to the expansion of the manufacturing facilities in germany.

notE 37. SUBSEQUEnt EVEntS
there have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements or notes.
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the global turmoil in the international markets has created another dimension to market risk and the management thereof. the group has procedures and infor-
mation systems in place to identify a potential downturn in the level of activity before such downturn actually impacts operations. contingency plans have been 
developed as to management actions which will be taken should there be a downturn in the activities of the group.

the operations of the group are partly shielded from the effect of the global turmoil in the international markets because of product diversity and geographical 
spread and the fact that its activities are not insignificant in the infrastructure sector where governments are planning to encourage and support increased spending.

the group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. the group’s overall 
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the group. 

risk management is carried out by the central finance department (group finance) under policies approved by the board of directors. this department is assisted by 
the treasury function. this treasury function`s primary role is to manage liquidity, funding, investments and counterparty credit risk arising with financial institutions. this 
centralised treasury function also manages the group’s market risk exposures, including risks arising from volatility in currency and interest rates. this treasury function 
is not a profit centre and the objective is to manage risk at optimum cost. the board sets the policy for the group’s centralised treasury operation and its activities are 
subject to a set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of the borrowings and investments and group wide exposures under its management.

the financial risk management of exposures arising from trading related financial instruments, primarily trade receivables and trade payables, is managed at the 
group and regional level through a series of set policies and procedures. regional managers apply these policies and procedures and perform review processes. 
the group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. these methods include sensitivity analyses in the case of interest rate 
risk and currency risk while ageing analyses of receivables is used to assess credit risk.

mARkEt RISk 
Currency risk
cavotec generally offers customers the possibility to pay in their own currencies through the global sales organization. As a result, the group is continuously 
exposed to currency risks in accounts receivables denominated in foreign currency and in future sales to foreign customers. this risk is mitigated by the fact that 
the group’s major competitors are also mainly located in euro jurisdictions and, consequently, it is possible to adjust sales prices to negate the adverse effect of 
the change. this issue of international pricing is under constant attention at the highest levels of management.

As the group trades across many countries, purchasing and selling in various currencies, there is a natural hedge within the group’s overall activities. An area of 
potential risk arises from the fact that only 24.1% (27.9%) of the group’s revenues are denominated in euro as the major manufacturing units, except for the 
operations of inet, dabico and Micro-control norway, are located in euro currency based jurisdictions and furthermore significant sales are also made in territories 
where the us dollar historically has had a significant influence (apart from the us, this would include the uAe, china, hong Kong and singapore amounting to 
39.6% of the group’s total sales from 43.8% in 2011). 

the exchange rates listed here below are used to prepare the financial statements:
Currency Average rate year end rate

Aed 0.21170 0.20638
Ars 0.17092 0.15415
Aud 0.80599 0.78666
bhd 0.00000 2.01005
brl 0.39865 0.36988
cAd 0.77869 0.76121
chf 0.82968 0.82836
dKK 0.13434 0.13403
eur 1.00000 1.00000
gbp 1.23324 1.22534
hKd 0.10034 0.09779
inr 0.01458 0.01378

KrW 0.00069 0.00071
noK 0.13378 0.13609
nZd 0.63024 0.62325
pln 0.00000 0.24546
QAr 0.00000 0.20819
rMb 0.12338 0.12164
rub 0.02505 0.02480
sAr 0.00000 0.20208
seK 0.11489 0.11652
sgd 0.62287 0.62069
usd 0.77834 0.75792
ZAr 0.09478 0.08950

At 31 december 2012, had the euro weakened/strengthened by 10% against foreign currencies to which the group is exposed, with all other variables held con-
stant, profit for the year and equity would have been eur 2,120 thousands higher/lower (2011: 1,666 thousands). this is mainly as a result of foreign exchange 
gains/losses on translation of financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the euro and in respect of operations in non-euro jurisdictions 
for financial assets and liabilities not in their local currency.

risK MAnAgeMent
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A sensitivity of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on an historical 
basis and market expectations for future moves.

2012 2011
EUR 000’s EUR -10% EUR +10% EUR -10% EUR +10% 

receivables  94  (94)  64  (64)
payables  (153)  153  (167)  167 
financial assets  2,179  (2,179)  1,769  (1,769)
financial liabilities  -    -   - -
total increase / (decrease)  2,120  (2,120)  1,666  (1,666)

financial assets and financial liabilities held at year end are held in the following currencies:
2012 2011

 EUR 000’s financial Assets financial liabilities financial Assets financial liabilities
eur  552  (34,433)  5,786  (34,857)
usd  6,173  -    3,348  -   
rMb  562  -    512  -   
Aed  531  -    234  -   
gbp  268  -    238  -   
seK  239  -    301  (890)
noK  512  (204)  324  (322)
Aud  196  (184)  488  (89)
chf  14  -    154  (387)
hKd  24  -    45  -   
other  1,240  (7)  1,523  (119)
total  10,313  (34,828)  12,952  (36,664)

other non-current financial assets totalling eur 113 thousands were excluded from the sensitivity analysis as these were in the same currency used by the relevant 
entity in its reporting.

the carrying amounts of the group and company’s trade receivables and trade payables are held in the following currencies:
2012 2011

 EUR 000’s Receivables Payables Receivables Payables
eur  19,902  (21,329)  18,929  (20,337)
usd  11,163  (4,354)  9,219  (5,437)
rMb  5,973  (1,366)  5,617  (1,132)
Aed  571  (3,054)  608  (1,333)
gbp  1,637  (563)  745  (212)
seK  316  (439)  521  (367)
noK  2,132  (1,175)  1,549  (1,758)
Aud  4,805  (1,260)  1,972  (1,080)
chf  -    (255)  -    (374)
hKd  1,167  (910)  993  (507)
other  2,917  (2,268)  2,458  (1,411)
total  50,583  (36,973)  42,612  (33,949)

other non-current assets totalling eur 2,345 thousands were excluded from the sensitivity analysis as these were in the same currency used by the relevant 
entity in its reporting.

Interest rate risk
interest rate risk management is aimed at balancing the structure of the debt, minimizing borrowing costs over time and limiting the volatility of results. the group 
is party to fixed interest rate loan agreements in the normal course of business in order to eliminate the exposure to increases in interest rates in the future in 
accordance with the group’s financial risk management policy approved by the board. the amount of floating rate debt is the main factor that could impact the 
statement of comprehensive income in the event of an increase in market rates. At 31 december, 2012 83% of the net debt was floating rate.

the impact of a 1% increase/decrease in interest rates will result in a decrease/increase of interest expenses for the year of eur 288 thousands (2011: 328 thousands).

trade payables, trade receivables and other financial instruments do not present a material exposure to interest rate volatility.

Financial instruments
the table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. the different levels have been defined as follows:
• Level 1: Determination of fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
• Level 2: Determination of fair value based on inputs other than the quoted prices of Level 1 but which are directly or indirectly observable
• Level 3: Determination of fair value based on valuation models with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
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the following table presents the group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value including those measured at amortized cost or at cost at 31 
december, 2012: 

 
 EUR 000’s

level 1 level 2 level 3 Valued at amortized 
cost

total

Assets
current financial assets  5 - - -  5 
non-current financial assets - - 40 -  40 
long-term loans - - -  113  113 
total Assets  5 - 40  113  158 

liabilities
current trading derivatives -  -   - -  -   
non-current trading derivatives -  (86) - -  (86)
total liabilities -  (86) - -  (86)

there is no change in the valuation of level 3 assets.

CREDIt RISk 
credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and 
committed transactions and it is managed on a group basis. A fundamental tenet of the group’s policy of managing credit risk is customer selectivity. the group has 
a large number of customers in its various geographies and therefore there is no concentration of credit. the group’s largest customers are prominent international 
companies and, while none of these represent a material percentage of total sales, outstanding receivables from these are regularly monitored and contained within 
reasonable limits. large value sales require customers to pay a deposit or pay in advance, and are authorised by the regional Managers or the ceo. the group 
has a credit policy which is used to manage this credit exposure ensuring minimal credit losses in past years.

After the global turmoil in the international markets, the company has introduced stringent practices to evaluate exposure to doubtful debts; the group requires 
that provisions be recorded not only to cover exposure relative to specific accounts in difficulty but also for accounts receivables balances which are past due for 
periods in excess of normal trading terms. As at 31 december, 2012 total past due trade receivables were higher than at the end of 2011 due to delay in the 
collection in china, Middle east and india. the ageing of the trade receivables is as follows:

 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
overdue up to 30 days  11,003  9,639 
overdue up to 30 and 60 days  3,826  4,480 
overdue up to 60 and 90 days  3,415  2,501 
overdue up to 90 and 120 days  1,497  858 
overdue up to 120 and 150 days  1,024  172 
overdue more than 150 days  3,341  1,286 
total  24,106  18,936 

At 31 december, 2012 eur 3,786 thousands (2011: 921 thousands) has been provisioned against impaired financial receivables.

Provision for impaired financial receivables by operating segment
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
Americas  (2,567)  (43)
europe & Africa  (403)  (207)
Middle east & india  (399)  (397)
far east  (207)  (210)
Australasia se Asia  (210)  (64)
total  (3,786)  (921)

nEt DEBt
net debt is defined as financial liabilities minus cash and cash equivalents and current financial assets.
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
cash and cash equivalents  10,313  12,952 
current financial assets  5  3 
bank overdraft  (1,829)  -   
short term debt  (2,911)  (4,277)
long term debt  (30,088)  (32,387)
total  (24,511)  (23,708)
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lIQUIDIty RISk
liquidity risk is managed by the group treasury unit, which ensures adequate coverage of cash needs by entering into short, medium and long-term financial 
instruments to support operational and other funding requirements. the board reviews and approves the maximum long-term funding of the group and on an on-
going basis considers any related matters on at least an annual basis. short and medium-term requirements are regularly reviewed and managed by the centralised 
treasury operation within the parameters set by the board. 

the group’s liquidity and funding management process includes projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets in relation thereto, monitoring 
balance sheet liquidity and maintaining a diverse range of funding sources and back-up facilities. the board reviews group forecasts, including cash flow forecasts, 
on a quarterly basis. the centralised treasury operation reviews cash flows more frequently to assess the short and medium-term requirements. these assessments 
ensure the group responds to possible future cash constraints in a timely manner. operating finance requirements of group companies are met, whenever possible, 
from the centralized treasury which is responsible for investing liquid asset surplus`s which are not immediately required by operating companies. 

in August 2011 the group renewed its eur 50.0 million syndicated loan facility agreement signed in 2009 and maturing in 2012. this agreement extends the maturity to 
August 2016 at improved pricing and includes an option to increase the facility up to eur 80 million. After the first amortization, the facility is now available in two parts - 
eur 8.0 million amortizing term loan (”facility A”) and eur 40.0 million revolving credit line (”facility b”). facility A was fully drawn at the end of 2012, drawings of facility 
b amounted to eur 31.5 million of which eur 25.5 million on the revolving credit facility itself and eur 5.9 million on the ancillary credit line for guarantees. see note 21 
for additional information. At the beginning of 2013, the group secured a eur 15.0 million increase of the existing syndicated loan facility expiring in 2016 at the same 
conditions.

the syndicated loan facility bears interest for each interest period at a rate per annum equal to euribor plus a variable margin which will be adjusted every quarter 
to reflect any changes in the ratio of net debt to consolidated ebitdA as determined on a rolling basis, with a minimum margin of 1.00% per annum. the loans are 
subject to certain restrictive covenants, including, but not limited to, additional borrowing, certain financial ratios, limitations on acquisitions and disposals of assets. 
if the financial covenants are not met and their breach is not remedied within a certain period or the lenders do not waive the covenants, there may grounds for 
termination under the conditions of the credit facility. the group is in compliance with all existing loan covenants as of december 31, 2012.  

As of december 31, 2012, the group’s total available credit facilities, which related to the above mentioned syndicated loan facility agreement and to other credit facilities 
with local banks, amounted to eur 84.0 million, of which eur 41.3 million was utilised. the table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities, excluding trade payables, 
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date against the cash and cash equivalent balances.

  2012 2011
 EUR 000’s less than 1 year 1 and 5 years less than 1 year 1 and 5 years
bank overdrafts and short term debt  (4,740) -  (4,277) -
long term debt -  (30,088) -  (32,387)
total  (4,740)  (30,088)  (4,277)  (32,387)
cash and cash equivalents  10,313 -  12,952 -

Credit facilities
 EUR 000’s total Used
bank overdrafts  (5,364)  (1,829)
current financial liabilities  (2,911)  (2,911)
non-current financial liabilities  (50,186)  (30,586)
total cash  (58,461)  (35,326)
guarantees  -    (5,974)
total  (58,461)  (41,300)

CAPItAl RISk mAnAGEmEnt
the group and the company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure that reduces the cost of capital. in order to maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
the group monitors capital on the basis of its debt to equity ratio calculated by comparing net debt to total equity. during 2012, the group’s strategy, which was 
unchanged, compared to previous years, was to maintain a debt to equity ratio of no more than 75%, consistent with the company’s financial covenant requirement 
under its long-term financing arrangements. in monitoring the level of indebtness, on-going attention is also given by management to the level of interest cover 
calculated as operating income divided by net financial costs and to the leverage ratio defined as net debt divided by gross operating income (ebitdA).

the debt equity ratios, interest cover and leverage ratio at 31 december, 2012 and 31 december, 2011 were as follows:
 EUR 000’s 2012 2011
total interest bearing liabilities  (34,828)  (36,664)
cash and cash equivalents  10,318  12,955 
net debt  (24,511)  (23,708)
total equity  (106,829)  (94,873)
debt equity ratio 22.9% 25.0%
interest cover 14.2 8.1
leverage ratio 1.13 1.38
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1

Report of the statutory auditor
to the general meeting of
Cavotec SA
Lugano

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cavotec SA, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet, con-
solidated statement of changes in equity,  consolidated statement of cash flows and notes (pages 58 to 
87), for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining 
an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of 
Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards as well as 
the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the 
internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidat-
ed financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, via della Posta 7, Casella postale, CH-6901 Lugano, Switzerland
Telephone: +41 58 792 65 00, Facsimile: +41 58 792 65 10, www.pwc.ch

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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1

Report of the statutory auditor
to the general meeting of
Cavotec SA
Lugano

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cavotec SA, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet, con-
solidated statement of changes in equity,  consolidated statement of cash flows and notes (pages 58 to 
87), for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining 
an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of 
Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards as well as 
the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the 
internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidat-
ed financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, via della Posta 7, Casella postale, CH-6901 Lugano, Switzerland
Telephone: +41 58 792 65 00, Facsimile: +41 58 792 65 10, www.pwc.ch

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity. 2

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act 
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances 
incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm 
that an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SA

                                                                     
Daniel Ketterer Efrem Dell’Era
Audit expert Audit expert
Auditor in charge

Lugano, 19 March 2013



90

stAtutory
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for the period ended 31 december 2012

please note that all reported amounts in this report are in chf. 
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Chf 2012 2011
revenue and income  1,257,148  - 

employee benefit costs  (714,007)  (171,452)
external services  (1,162,079)  (2,857,709)
travelling expenses  (56,687)  (51,892)
general expenses  (78,415)  (7,026)
operating Result  (754,040)  (3,088,079)

finance costs - net  (29,618)  (1,382)
foreign exchange - net  (759,114)  (581,636)
Result before income tax  (1,542,771)  (3,671,097)

taxes  (27,812)  (15,434)
Result for the period  (1,570,583)  (3,686,530)

CAVotEC SA
Income statement

CAVotEC SA
Balance Sheet

Assets
Chf

notes 2012 2011

Current assets
cash and cash equivalents  5,159  27,827 
trade receivables, group  687,614 -
prepaid exp. and accrued income  3,170  6,547 
tax assets  20,856  42,221 
other current receivables  385  -   
total current assets  717,184  76,595 

non-current assets
investment in subsidiary companies 3  118,845,874  122,501,704 
own shares 5  98,716 100,006
total non-current assets  118,944,590 122,601,710

total assets  119,661,774 122,678,305

liabilities 2012 2011

Current liabilities
bank overdrafts 10  (13,182,754)  (11,616,067)
current financial liabilities 10 -  (1,355,394)
trade accounts payables  (199,765)  (393,575)
Accruals and deferred income  (107,329)  (159,874)
tax provision  (18,836)  (15,221)
other liabilities  (33,766)  (19,034)
total current liabilities  (13,542,450)  (13,559,163)

total non-current liabilities -    -   

total liabilities  (13,542,450)  (13,559,163)

Equity 2012 2011

share capital 4  (109,237,747)  (110,665,691)
legal reserves:
  - reserve for own shares 4,5  (98,716)  (100,006) 
share premium reserve 4  (2,039,975)  (2,039,975)
prior year retained earnings 4  3,686,530 -
result for the period 4  1,570,583  3,686,530 
total equity  (106,119,324)  (109,119,142)

total equity and liabilities  (119,661,774)  (122,678,305)

stAtutory finAnciAl stAteMents
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stAtutory finAnciAl stAteMents
CAVotEC SA
notes to Statutory financial Statements
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notE 1. GEnERAl  
cavotec sA (the ”company”) is the parent company of the cavotec group.

cavotec is a global engineering group that manufactures power transmission, distribution and control technologies that form the link between fixed and mobile 
equipment in the ports & Maritime, Airports, Mining & tunnelling and general industry sectors. All engineering and most manufacturing of cavotec’s products and 
systems take place at nine specialised engineering centres of excellence in germany (three), sweden, norway, italy, the united states (two) and new Zealand. 
cavotec has fully owned sales companies spread across the world which monitor local markets and cooperate with cavotec’s centres of excellence. 

cavotec sA is listed on nAsdAQ oMX in stockholm, sweden.

the consolidated financial statements are of overriding importance for the purpose of the economic and financial assessment of the company. the unconsolidated 
statutory financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with swiss law, the code of obligations (sco), and serve as complementary information 
to the consolidated financial statements.

notE 2. SUmmARy of SIGnIfICAnt ACCoUntInG PolICIES
Exchange rate differences – the company keeps its accounting records in euro and translates them into swiss francs (chf) for statutory reporting purposes. 
the euro statutory financial statements have been translated into swiss francs as follows:
Assets (except goodwill, investments in subsidiaries and own shares) and liabilities   closing rate
goodwill, investments in subsidiaries, own shares and shareholders’ equity   historical rate
income and expenses        average rate
translation gains are deferred and translation losses are included in the determination of net income.
Current assets and liabilities – current assets and liabilities are recorded at cost less adjustments for impairment of value.
Financial assets – financial assets are recorded at acquisition cost less adjustments for impairment of value.
Goodwill – goodwill is amortised over its expected useful life for a maximum period of 15 years. 
Own shares – own shares are valued at the lower of cost and realisable value at the balance sheet date. the reserve for the own shares included in shareholders’ 
equity corresponds to the historical purchase cost of the own shares.

notE 3. InVEStmEnt In SUBSIDIARy ComPAnIES
Company name Purpose Domicile ownership interest Curr. Share Capital
cavotec (swiss) sA service company switzerland 100% chf 200,000
cavotec MoorMaster ltd holding & engineering new Zealand 100% nZd 9,500,000
cavotec us holdings inc holding usA 100% usd 6,000,000

notE 4. ShAREholDERS’ EQUIty
Description Date Shares Share capital (Chf)
incorporation 14 June 2011 100,000 100,000
consolidation of shares - step 1 29 september 2011 100,006 100,006
consolidation of shares - step 2 3 october 2011 64,520 100,006
scheme of Arrangement 3 october 2011 71,397,220 110,665,691
listing on nAsdAQ oMX stockholm 19 october 2011 71,397,220 110,665,691
reduction of share capital 4 May 2012 71,397,220 109,237,747

cavotec sA was established by cavotec Msl in lugano, switzerland on 14 June 2011 with an initial share capital of chf 100,000 fully paid up and divided into 
100,000 registered shares. the shares’ par value was chf 1.00.

prior to the scheme of Arrangement, cavotec sA’s outstanding shares were consolidated into 64,520 shares and the shares’ par value was increased to chf 
1.55. the consolidation process induced a share capital increase of chf 6.00.

cavotec sA, as of contribution Agreement dated 3 october 2011, assumed from the shareholders in cavotec Msl, the option right in 71,332,700 registered 
shares of cavotec MoorMaster, for a total amount of chf 112,705,666 and accepted by the company for this amount. this capital increase was registered with 
the relevant swiss authority on 3 october 2011. chf 110,565,685 has been imputed on the share capital, whereas chf 2,139,981 as share premium reserve, 
for an equivalent to the contributor of 71,332,700 fully paid up registered shares with a par value of chf 1.55 each of the company.

the AgM held on 4 May, 2012 approved a reduction of the nominal value of the registered shares from chf 1.55 to 1.53. the nominal value reduction was 
used for the repayment to the shareholders. 
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 Chf Share Capital
legal Reserve

Share Premium 
Reserve

Prior year 
Result for
the period

total 
Shareholder’s 

equity
Reserve for 
own shares

Retained 
Earnings

opening balance at january 1, 2012 110,665,691 100,006 2,039,975 (3,686,530) 109,119,142
reduction share capital (1,427,944) (1,290) (1,429,235)
Allocation prior year result (3,686,530) 3,686,530 -
result of the period (1,570,583) (1,570,583)
Balance at December 31, 2012 109,237,747 98,716 2,039,975 (3,686,530) (1,570,583) 106,119,324

the 2012 AgM approved the creation of a contingent share capital of 713,972 shares, in connection with employees’ participation to the 2012 long term incen-
tive plan (ltip), and the creation of the authorized share capital of 14,279,444 shares by not later than 4 May 2014. 

Share capital as of December 31, 2012 no of registered shares Par value total (Chf)
issued shares 71,397,220 chf 1.53 109,237,747
contingent shares 713,972 chf 1.53 1,092,377
Authorized shares 14,279,444 chf 1.53 21,847,549

notE 5. own ShARES
the own shares held at 31 december were 64,520, equal to 0.09% of the total share capital. A reserve for own shares of chf 99 thousands equal to 64,520 
shares at chf 1.53 has been established.

notE 6. SIGnIfICAnt ShAREholDERS
the end of the year and based on the available information, the shareholders with holdings in excess of 5% of the shares are:

 year ended 31 December 2012
 Shareholders number %
lars hellman & family (through nordea life & pension) founder 7,912,551 11.1%
stefan Widegren & family* chairman & founder 7,754,264 10.9%
Michael colaco (through inet As inc) shareholder 7,703,844 10.8%
fabio cannavale (through nomina sA & other) board member 6,948,046 9.7%
Total 30,318,705 42.5%

 year ended 31 December 2011
 Shareholders number %
lars hellman & family (through nordea life & pension) founder 7,912,551 11.1%
stefan Widegren & family* chairman & founder 7,754,264 10.9%
Michael colaco (through inet As inc) shareholder 7,700,000 10.8%
fabio cannavale (through nomina sA & other) board member 6,948,046 9.7%
Total 30,314,861 42.5%

* The amount includes the shares owned by Stefan Widegren, Lotten Widegren, Kristina Widegren and Thomas Widegren.
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stAtutory finAnciAl stAteMents
CAVotEC SA
notes to Statutory financial Statements

notE 7. BoARD of DIRECtoRS ComPEnSAtIon
in 2012, a total remuneration to the board members in cavotec sA was paid in aggregate of chf 1,974 thousands, whereof chf 681 thousands was allocated 
to the chairman of the board of directors and chf 1,293 thousands in total, was allocated to the other members of the board of directors (including the chief 
executive officer). their remuneration can be found in the table below.
 year ended 31 December 2012
 Board of Directors
 Chf

 Board fees  Short-term employee 
benefits 

 Post-employment 
benefits 

 Consultancy  total

 fabio cannavale 31,337 1,753   3,009                         -   36,099
 leena essén  37,364 141,504 13,558                         -   192,426
 nicola gerber 31,337 1,402 2,406                         -   35,145
 christer granskog 43,390 1,647 3,009                         -   48,045
 lakshmi Khanna (1) 46,403 -   -   93,901 140,304
 erik lautmann (2) 40,377 1,806 3,100 12,023 57,306
 Joe pope 43,390 765 2,039                         -   46,195
 ottonel popesco (3) 
 (chief executive officer) -   707,204 30,354

                        
 -   737,558

 stefan Widegren (4) (chairman) 126,554 351,317 - 203,000 680,872
 total remuneration 400,153 1,207,398 57,475 308,924 1,973,950

(1) Lakshmi Khanna has provided consulting services to Cavotec International totalling CHF 94 thousands.
(2) Erik Lautmann, through Radela AB, has provided consulting services to Cavotec SA totalling CHF 13 thousands.
(3) Ottonel Popesco’s remuneration includes the remuneration of his wife.
(4) Stefan Widegren, through Soliden Sagl, has provided consulting services to the Group totaling CHF 203 thousands. His remuneration includes the remuneration of his wife.

 4Q 2011
 Board of Directors
 Chf

 Board fees  Short-term employee 
benefits 

 Post-employment 
benefits 

 Consultancy  total

 fabio cannavale 8,012 -   -                            -   8,012
 leena essén  9,553 70,938 3,389                          -   83,880
 nicola gerber 8,012 -   -                            -   8,012
 christer granskog 11,093 -   -                            -   11,093
 lakshmi Khanna 11,864 -   -                            -   11,864
 erik lautmann 10,323 -   -   41,601 51,924
 Joe pope 11,093 -   -                            -   11,093
 ottonel popesco  
 (chief executive officer) -   141,995 19,836

                        
 -   161,832

 stefan Widegren (chairman) 32,356 69,573 15,839 74,999 192,768
 total remuneration 102,307 282,507 39,064 116,600 540,478

the board of directors compensation for 2011 related only to the last quarter of the year due to the restructuring of the group with the change of parent company.

in addition, the company reimburses the directors’ travel and incidental expenses incurred for attending board, committee and shareholder meetings and for other 
company business-related purposes.

notE 8. ExECUtIVE mAnAGEmEnt ComPEnSAtIon  
the remuneration of the executive Management of cavotec sA was as follows:
 year ended 31 December 2012
 Chf  Short-term employee benefits  Post-employment benefits total
 executive Management 1,324,075 63,095 1,387,170
 total remuneration 1,324,075 63,095 1,387,170

 year ended 31 December 2011
 Chf  Short-term employee benefits  Post-employment benefits total
 executive Management 1,361,943 112,243 1,474,186
 total remuneration 1,361,943 112,243 1,474,186

the table above includes the remuneration of ottonel popesco equal to chf 738 thousands, of which chf 30 thousands for post-employment benefits. 

the basis of calculation of executive Management compensation has been aligned between 2011 and 2012.

Cavotec Annual Report 2012  |  statutory financial statements
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from 2012, the company has implemented a long-term incentive plan for selected employees of the group in the form of annually offered share matching plan 
(the “plan”). the purpose of the plan is to provide selected key employees with an opportunity to become shareholders of cavotec. the plan is implemented, 
centrally administered and maintained by board of directors and the remuneration committee is responsible for the structuring and operation of the plan. 

A participant in the plan (the “participant”) has the possibility, but is not obligated, to purchase shares at fair value in the stock-market (“co-investment shares”) 
during a defined period for the respective plan. the maximum number of shares that can qualify as co-investment shares are determined by the board of directors 
at its sole discretion, but is capped at 10 per cent of the participant’s annual base salary.

the co-investment shares purchased under the plan are subject to a holding period of approximately 3 years (the date when the holding period ends will be known 
as the “Matching date”). the participant has full share ownership rights over the co-investment shares and they may be disposed of, sold, donated, pledged or 
transferred in any way during the holding period. the participant is, however, obliged to notify the plan administrator of any changes. the participant is entitled to 
obtain a bonus (the “Matching bonus”) according to the terms and conditions of the plan, provided that the participant is employed in the cavotec group on the 
Matching date. cavotec shall make available the required amount in cash and the required number of shares for the Matching bonus, which the participants may 
acquire, based on the plan.

the maximum dilution for shareholders in cavotec as a result of the plan is one per cent or 713,972 shares. please refer to note 4 for more information about the 
creation of the contingent share capital. the maximum cost for cavotec for the duration of the plan (excluding social security payments), based on the assumptions 
that all targets are met, that all participants in the plan elect for a pay-out of their Matching bonus in the form of shares and on a share price of seK 22.60 at the 
time of allocation, will be approximately eur 1.8 million. the plan has not been hedged.

notE 9. ShARE ownERShIP – BoARD of DIRECtoRS AnD ExECUtIVE mAnAGEmEnt
based on publicly available information, the ownership by members of the board and senior management is as follow:

 Shareholders as of 31 December 2012 number %
lars hellman & family (through nordea life & pension) founder 7,912,551 11.1%
stefan Widegren & family* chairman & founder 7,754,264 10.9%
fabio cannavale (through nomina sA & other) board member 6,948,046 9.7%
peter brandel founder 2,952,348 4.1%
leena essén (through Anelea holdings & other) board member 2,920,293 4.1%
ottonel popesco & family ceo 2,634,564 3.7%
Michael Widegren & family eMc member 1,087,018 1.5%
lakshmi Khanna board member 263,406 0.4%
erik lautmann board member 97,802 0.1%
patrick rosenwald eMc member 45,153 0.1%
erik chiló eMc member 40,121 0.1%
christian bernadotte eMc member 38,411 0.1%
Michael scheepers eMc member 34,880 0.0%
diego fiorentini group cfo 26,727 0.0%
gary Matthews eMc member 20,851 0.0%
Juergen strommer eMc member 20,851 0.0%
gustavo Miller eMc member 20,474 0.0%
christer granskog (through oy piceum Ab) board member 20,000 0.0%
luciano corbetta eMc member 17,560 0.0%
giorgio lingiardi eMc member 10,000 0.0%
Joe pope board member 10,000 0.0%
yann duclot eMc member 7,062 0.0%
ester cadau eMc member 3,000 0.0%
Total 32,885,382 46.0%

* The amount includes the shares owned by Stefan Widegren, Lotten Widegren, Kristina Widegren and Thomas Widegren.

notE 10. CREDIt fACIlIty AGREEmEntS
cavotec sA is the borrower under certain debt securities including the group syndicated credit facilities signed with seb Ag and banca imi and the credit facility 
signed with cornér bank. As of year-end the total utilization was chf 2,208 thousands.
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notE 11. GUARAntEES AnD CommItmEntS
cavotec sA is a guarantor for the existing eur 48 million syndicated credit facility. At the beginning of 2013, the group secured a eur 15 million increase
of the existing syndicated loan facility expiring in 2016 at the same conditions.

cavotec sA carries joint liability in respect of the federal tax authorities for value added tax liabilities of its swiss subsidiary.  

the following table provides quantitative data regarding the company’s third-party guarantees.

Chf 31 December 2012
Advance payment bonds 515,831
performance bond 578,472
letter of credits 660,672
other guarantees 934,924
Total 2,689,899

notE 12. RISk ASSESSmEnt DISCloSURE
cavotec sA, as the ultimate parent company of cavotec group, is fully integrated into the company-wide internal risk assessment process.

the company-wide internal risk assessment process consists of regular reporting to the board of directors of cavotec sA on identified risks and management’s 
reaction to them. the procedures and actions to identify the risks, and where appropriate remediate, are performed by specific corporate functions as well as by 
the operating companies of the group. it also adopted and deployed group-wide the internal control system (“ics”). 

the ics is designed to identify, communicate, and mitigate risks in order to minimise their potential impact on the group. A risk assessment analysis was performed 
by the board of directors. this analysis provided a high-level mapping of risks to allow group Management to make appropriate decisions on the future of the 
group. this map identified the following main areas of risks related to
• Information and Consolidated Reporting
• Engaging the Group, Protecting its Assets, Compliance
• The Group’s Industry
• The Group’s Business
• Information, Subsidiary Reporting, Social Security and Tax
• Engaging Subsidiaries, Protecting their Assets, Local Compliance.
financial risks management is described in more detail in the risk Management note of the consolidated financial statements.

notE 13. RElAtED PARty tRAnSACtIonS
As of 31 december 2012, the company has granted no loans, advances, borrowings or guarantees in favour of member of the board of directors and members 
of the executive Management committee or parties closely related to such persons.

notE 14. SUBSEQUEnt EVEntS
there have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements or notes.

notE 15. PRoPoSED APPRoPRIAtIon of AVAIlABlE EARnInGS
the board of directors proposes to the shareholders the following appropriation:

 Chf 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
carried forward from previous years (3,686,530) -
net loss for the financial year (1,570,583) (3,686,530)
Total earnings available (5,257,113) (3,686,530)
Appropriation to general statutory reserves (retained earnings) - -
Appropriation to other reserves - -
Proposed balance to be carried forward                                                            (5,257,113) (3,686,530)

in lieu of a dividend the board of directors will propose to the Annual general Meeting, to be held on 23 April 2013, a reduction in par value of the shares by 
chf 0.05 to chf 1.48.

stAtutory finAnciAl stAteMents
CAVotEC SA
notes to Statutory financial Statements
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notE 16. lEGAl RISkS
the outcome of any current or future proceedings cannot be predicted. it is therefore possible that legal or regulatory judgments or future settlements could give 
rise to expenses that are not covered, or not fully covered, by insurers’ compensation payments and could significantly affect our revenues and earnings.
legal proceedings currently considered to involve material risks are outlined below. 

Mike Colaco litigation
during the year, following the commencement of an internal investigation of certain practices at cavotec‘s us-based inet operations, Mike colaco, former owner of 
inet Airport systems inc. was suspended from all management positions in cavotec inet inc. and other us Affiliates of the cavotec group on 2 september 2012. 
colaco subsequently filed a lawsuit against cavotec sA on 1 october 2012. cavotec sA denies any wrongdoing and has filed a countersuit against colaco and oth-
ers on 26 october 2012. the lawsuit is moving forward and discovery is currently underway. the trial is expected to start on 4 november 2013. the assessment 
of the board of directors is that the claims made by colaco are without substantial basis or foundation and are not likely to result in any material financial exposure 
to cavotec, which has not already been provided for in the accounts. As the litigation is on-going the company withholds from further comment at this time. 
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Report of the statutory auditor
to the general meeting of
Cavotec  SA
Lugano

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of Cavotec SA, which comprise the 
balance sheet, income statement and notes (pages 91 to 97), for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility 
includes designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the prepara-
tion of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting poli-
cies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to 
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 comply with Swiss law 
and the company’s articles of incorporation.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act 
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances 
incompatible with our independence.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, via della Posta 7, Casella postale, CH-6901 Lugano, Switzerland
Telephone: +41 58 792 65 00, Facsimile: +41 58 792 65 10, www.pwc.ch

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.



99

2

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm 
that an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial state-
ments according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and 
the company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you 
be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SA

Daniel Ketterer Efrem Dell’Era
Audit expert Audit expert
Auditor in charge

Lugano, 19 March 2013
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